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Growth through the best value creation for the benet of all stakeholders.

VISION

MISSION
Invest in project that will optimize the risk-return prole of the Company.

Achieve excellence in business.

Continuously develop our human resource.

To be regarded by investors as amongst the best blue-chip stocks in the country.
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Group Structure

Since its inception, the Ghani Global Group has continuously strengthened and diversied its lines of operation and 

all group companies are working under common directorship / management.

Introduction

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

On sanction of the scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and 

Reconstruction by the Court, Ghani Global Holdings Limited  

transferred its entire manufacturing undertaking to the Company 

effective from 01 July 2018. It is one of the leading Company 

engaged in manufacturing and sales of industrial and medical gases 

and chemicals. The Company is subsidiary of  Ghani Global Holdings 

Limited.

Ghani Global Glass Limited

Company is engaged in manufacturing of import substitute Neutral 

Glass USP Type-I glass tubing, glass ampoules and glass vials since 

2015. The Company is the subsidiary of Ghani Global Holdings 

Limited.

Ghani Global
Holdings Limited

Air Ghani (Pvt) Limited

Ghani Engineering (Pvt) Limited

Ghani Global Foods (Pvt) Limited

Ghani Products (Pvt) Limited
Associated
Companies

A One Prefabs (Pvt) Limited

A One Batteries (Pvt) Limited

Awal Engineering (Pvt) Limited

G3 Technologies Limited

Kilowatt Labs Technologies Limited

G3 Chemicals (Pvt) Limited

Ghani Industrial Complex (Pvt) Limited

G3 Fintech (Pvt) Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Lahore

October 04, 2022

Masroor Ahmad Khan

Chairman, Board of Directors 

I am pleased to report that the Board has exercised its powers and performed its duties as envisaged in the 

Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("the Code") 

contained in the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is Listed. 

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2022 played effective role in managing the affairs of the Company in the 

following manner:

Review Report by the Chairman on Board's overall performance under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Board remain updated with respect to achievement of Company's objectives, goals, strategies and  

nancial performance through review of reports from management, internal auditors and other consultants as a 

result the Board was able to provide effective leadership to the Company; 

-

The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive and independent directors on the 

Board and its committees as laid down in the Code of Corporate Governance and has taken required initiatives  

in its true letter and spirit. Moreover, the Board ensured that members of the Board and its respective 

committees has adequate skills, experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company;

-

The Board has obtained annual evaluation of Board of Directors from a professional rm of accountants for an 

independent evaluation of the Board and rm has issued fair report on overall performance of the board;

-

Based on aforementioned it can reasonably be argued that Board of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has played pivotal 

role in ensuring that corporate objectives are achieved in line with the expectation of shareholders and all other 

stakeholders. 

The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with the requisite training or orientation courses to enable 

them to perform their duties in an effective manner and directors on the Board have already taken certication 

under Directors Training Program and the remaining directors will take the certication in accordance with the 

Code; 

-

The Board has formed Audit Committees and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee and has approved 

their respective Terms of References and has assigned adequate resources so that the committees are able to 

perform their responsibilities diligently in line with the expectation of Board.

-

The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its committee were held with the requisite 

quorum, all  the decision making were taken through Board resolution and that the minutes of all the meetings 

(including committees) are appropriately recorded and maintained; 

-

All the signicant issues were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and formalize the 

corporate decision making process and particularly all the related party transactions executed by the Company 

were approved by the Board on the recommendations of the Audit Committee;

-

The Board has reviewed the compensation of Chief Executive, Executive Directors and other Key Executives 

including Chief Financial Ofcer, Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit in accordance with the 

Companies Act, 2017 and the Code;

-

The Board has ensured that sound system of internal controls are in place and appropriateness and 

effectiveness of same is considered by internal auditors on regular basis;

-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

OVERVIEW OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

The COVID-19 pandemic had triggered a global macroeconomic crisis of unprecedented scale with a varied impact 
on different sectors and industries. Some countries and regions were affected more than others. The reasons behind 
this are manifold and complex. The policy responses and the outcomes that followed varied widely. Several countries 
implemented stimulus packages to support the national economies and to relieve unemployed people. The pandemic 
plunged most countries into recession, with per capita income contracting.

Dear Shareholders 
Assalam-o-Alaikum Wa RehmatUllah Wa Barakatoh
The directors of Ghani Global Holdings Limited (the Company) are pleased to present the unconsolidated as well as 
consolidated audited nancial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022, in compliance with the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The Principal activity of the Company is to manage investments in its subsidiary and associated companies. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In compliance with scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction approved by the Honorable Lahore 
High Court, Lahore on 06-02-2019 in Civil Original No. 221137 of 2018, effective from July 01, 2018 the Company 
transferred its manufacturing undertaking including all assets, liabilities, rights, title and interest including employees 
of the Company to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. 

Global macro-economic instability has taken its toll on the Pakistan economy resulting in high ination and an 
increasing Current Account Decit. The government has started taking tough scal actions in order to secure the IMF 
deal, which would bear fruit over the next few quarters in the form of stabilized reserves, controlled scal balance and 
sustainable economic growth. However, fast-paced implementation of energy pass-through and scal tightening 
measures are expected to increase the political temperature. 

Continued surge in global food & fuel prices, PKR devaluation and energy pass-through resulted in national CPI 
reaching 21.3% in June 2022, a level which was last witnessed during 2008. Accordingly, FY2021-22 average CPI 
stands at 12.2% compared to 8.9% last year. Ination is expected to remain elevated during the next few months with 
the impact of high energy rates to fully reect in the CPI, before starting to taper off in the latter half of FY2022-23.

On the scal side, some slippages were witnessed, and the decit clocked in at 4.0% of GDP during Jul-Mar 2022, 
compared to 3.6% in SPLY. This was despite 28% tax revenue growth which was used for higher expenditures. 
Reverting to scal adherence in line with IMF guidelines, the Government has presented the FY2022-23 budget with -
scal decit target of 4.9% for FY 2023 compared to the projected 7% in FY 2022. FBR tax target growth of 23% would 
be a challenge despite revocation of various tax exemptions/relaxations and imposition of one-time higher super tax. 
Prudent utilization of tax revenues remains the key to scal discipline. 

Structural imbalances have caused higher twin decits, warranting an economic slowdown. For sustainable growth, 
scal discipline remains central and the recently announced Federal Budget FY2023 is a step towards that. Revival of 
IMF program would also help improve market sentiment and FX -ows while keeping scal discipline in check. The 
recent downtrend in some commodity prices is also a welcome sign and if sustained, would signicantly improve the 
country's external account position and offer respite on the scal front.

Pakistan benchmark KSE-100 index fell 7.5% during 4Q FY2022, taking total return to negative 12.3% in FY2022 as a 
result of deteriorating global and local macro-economic indicators. 

The new government is working hard for economic reformation and to improve Pakistan's credibility in the 
international market, which remains imperative. The country needs to scale back both its imports and expenditures 
and manage the economic situation. Efforts in this direction are underway and will hopefully soon bear fruit. Short-
term measures can be helpful for Pakistan, but it's time to look for long-term solutions too.
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Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (subsidiary company)

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) is engaged in manufacturing and sale of industrial and medical gases and 
chemicals. 

Accordingly, during the period, the company conducted trading/sales activities related to medical and industrial 
equipment's, other income reects commission on corporate guarantee issued by the Company and prot from 
banks on saving accounts.

STANDALONE PERFORMANCE 

A comparison of the key nancial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 with the last year is as 
under: 

Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS  Variance  

  Jun-22 Jun-21  Rs. 000  %  

Gross sales   107,743      8,158    99,585  1221%  

Net sales    91,838      6,973    84,865  1217%  

Direct cost   (70,930)    (6,366)   (64,564)  1014%  

Gross profit    20,908  607    20,301  3344%  
Administrative expenses   (11,616)  (33,136)    21,520  -65%  
Other  expenses     (2,042)    (3,117)      1,075  -34%  
Other income      7,563    10,607     (3,044)  -29%  
Profit / (loss) before taxation    14,813   (25,039)    39,852  -159%  
Taxation     (4,337)    (6,706)      2,369  -35%  
Profit / (loss) after taxation    10,476   (31,745)    42,221  -133%  
Earnings / (loss) per share  restated      0.033     (0.118)   -    -   

CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE

Financial performance including subsidiaries for year ended June 30, 2022 in comparison with last year is as under: 

Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS  Variance  

  Jun-22  Jun-21  Rs. 000  %  

Sales 6,504,668         5,955,603  549,065  9%  

Sales - net 5,622,426         5,194,462  427,964  8%  

Cost of sales (3,434,875)  
      

(3,112,522)  (322,353)  10%  

Gross prot 2,187,551         2,081,940  105,611  5%  

Distribution cost (325,063)  
         

(337,379)  12,316  -4%  

Administrative expenses (269,450)  
         

(301,985)  32,535  -11%  

Other expenses (116,346)  
          

(99,594)  (16,752)  17%  
Other income 216,281             61,900  154,381  249%  
Prot from operations 1,692,973         1,404,882  288,091  21%  

Finance cost (299,182)  
         

(307,219)  8,037  -3%  
Share of prot of an Associated Company 4,150                    -     4,150  100%  
Prot before taxation 1,397,941         1,097,663  300,278  27%  
Taxation (394,607)  

         
(305,237)  (89,370)  29%  

Prot after taxation 1,003,334            792,426  210,908  27%  
Combined earnings per share 2.05                 2.04              -             -    

Alhamdulillah sales and end result performance of this subsidiary has considerably increased as compared with the 
same period of last year.
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Annual sales of the company for the year ended June 2022, closed at Rs. 4,782 million as compared to last year June 
2021, sales of Rs. 4,350 million which is showing  increase of 10%, ALHAMDULILLAH. Gross prot has jumped 
from Rs. 1,657 million to Rs. 1,747 million showing increased of Rs. 90 million, depicting increase of 5%. 
Distribution expenses decreased in terms of percentage to sales from 8% to 7%, and administrative expenses remain 
same. Company's operating prot year ended June, 2022, is amounting to Rs. 1,390 million compared to last year's 
operating prot of Rs. 1,175 million showing increase of Rs. 216 million, depicting increase of 18%. Financial cost of 
the company increased from Rs. 208 million to Rs. 230 million showing increase of 10%. Net prot of the company 
has jumped from Rs. 691 million to prot of Rs. 812 million i.e. in terms of percentage from net prot ratio of 18% to 
19%. Alhamdulillah, accordingly, EPS of company has increased from Rs.2.28 to Rs. 2.33.

A comparison of the key nancial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 is as under:

Particulars
 

Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS
 

Variance
 

 
Jun-22

 
Jun-21

 
Rs. 000

 
%

 

Sales
        

4,781,791 
        

4,350,558 
        

431,233 
 
10%

Sales -
 
net

        
4,190,726 

        
3,837,826 

        
352,900 

 
9%

Cost of sales
       

(2,444,054)
       

(2,180,711)
       

(263,343)
 
12%

-
        

As % of net sales
 

58%
 

57%
   

Gross profit
        

1,746,672 
        

1,657,115 
         

89,557 
 
5%

-
        

As % of net
 
sales

 
42%

 
43%

   

Distribution cost
          

(303,967)
          

(302,109)
          

(1,858)
 

1%
-
        

As % of net sales
 

7%
 

8%
   

Administrative expenses
          

(163,298)
          

(145,612)
        

(17,686)
 
12%

-
        

As % of net sales
 

4%
 

4%
   

Other expenses
          

(100,626)
           

(89,507)
        

(11,119)
 
12%

-        As % of net sales  2%  2%    

Other income            211,830             55,092         156,738  285%

-        As % of net sales  5%  1%    

Profit from operations         1,390,611         1,174,979         215,632  18%
-        As % of net sales  33%  31%    

Finance cost           (229,626)           (208,265)         (21,361)  10%
-        As % of net sales  5%  5%    

Share of prot of an Associated 
Company               2,844                    -     

          2,844  100%

Profit before taxation         1,163,829            966,714         197,115  20%

Taxation           (351,486)           (275,597)         (75,889)  28%
Profit after taxation            812,343            691,117         121,226  18%
-        As % of net sales  19%  18%    
Earnings per share -  restated  2.33  2.28   -   -

Severe monsoon rains during July to Sep-2022 triggered oods in southern and Northern Pakistan of an 
unprecedented scale, both in terms of volume and amount of land ooded. Causing damage to crops, infrastructure 
and human settlements, thus affecting the national economy. 

According to the World Bank and Asian Development Bank (ADB) Damage and Needs Assessment (DNA) report, 
approximately, 9.6 million people have been affected in Sindh and Baluchistan as a result of the oods.

The ood also substantially affected the livestock population causing death and loss in productivity mainly in Sindh.

According to the Asian Development Bank (ADB, Pakistan's economy’s forecast to slow in scal year 2023.

We hope that ood related reconstruction and economic reforms will catalyze signicant international nancial 
support, stimulate growth, and preserve social and development spending to protect the vulnerable. 
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Ghani Global Glass Limited is engaged in manufacturing and sale of import substitute Glass Tubing, Glass Ampoules 
and Glass Vials since 2015. During the period subsidiary succeeded to get approval of its products in multinational 
companies (MNCs), middle, and large scale national companies where it is working closely with these companies 
and getting a sizeable business even the presence of numerous converters in market. 

Ghani Global Glass Limited (subsidiary company)

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (subsidiary company)

Due to CORONA's pandemic, the rst half of the year 2021–22 showed signicant increase in oxygen demand from 
the healthcare sector. Later, because of the distribution of vaccine across the country and the less severe OMICRON 
variant during the fth wave, which was not lethal compared to the Delta variant, the pandemic's spread was kept 
under control.

The economic outlook will be shaped largely by the restoration of political stability and the continued implementation 
of reforms under the revived International Monetary Fund program to stabilize the economy and restore scal and 
external buffers.

The healthcare contracts signed for FY 2022–2023, the long-term contract with EPCL, the robust demand from the 
merchant market, and the anticipated decline in energy prices in the second half of the year would all signicantly 
contribute to the company's growth.   

For the year ended June 2022, your company closed the sales at amounting to Rs. 1,780 million mark as compared 
to last year end sales of Rs. 1,645 million showing the 8% increase in sale. Gross prot increased to Rs. 420 million 
from Rs. 414 million as compared to last year. Distribution cost and administrative cost incurred during year is Rs. 21 
million and Rs. 83 million whereas for the last year it was Rs. 25 million and Rs. 109 million, respectively. 
Administrative cost decreased due to right issue expenses incurred amounting to Rs. 36 million in last year. Operating 
prots of the company improved from 20% to 21%.

Finance cost slightly decreased for the period incurred on the long term nance and working capital lines to Rs. 80 
million compared to Rs.110 million for the last period. Alhamdulillah Company earned prot amounting to Rs. 198 
million as compared to the last year which was Rs. 133 million i.e. improvement to 13% from 10% 
ALHAMDULILLAH. In the result Earnings per share is Rs. 0.82 whereas during last year Company's Earnings per 
share was Rs. 0.85. 

A comparison of the key nancial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 with the last year is as 
under: 

Alhamdulillah, thanks to the tireless efforts of the company's operational, distribution, and marketing teams, that 
enabled us to full all of its contractual commitments to both public and private hospitals, despite a three- to fourfold 
increase in demand of Oxygen across the country.

At the same time, commitments to industrial clients were fullled with zeal and careful planning, to maintain the 
industrial wheel in rotation. 

09Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Particulars
 June 2022 June 2021  

Rupees  Rupees  
Gross Sales  

 

 
Net sales   
Gross prot

   
Administrative expenses

   
Selling and distribution expenses

   
Operating prot

 

1,780,309,313

1,505,037,216

419,968,813

(83,040,779)

(21,093,265)

315,834,769
  Earning per share 0.82

1,645,391,486

1,398,168,264

414,153,503

(109,458,591)

(25,205,477)

279,489,435

0.85



The healthcare segment still accounts for more than 50% of the total revenue in the year under review, despite weak 
demand in the second half.

By the grace of Allah SWT, the new dedicated ASU began supplying gaseous oxygen and nitrogen via pipe line to full 
the contractual obligations to the customer as per schedule. Thanks to the operation and maintenance team's 
professionalism and the continuously demanding assistance of the supply chain division.

Engro Polymer & Chemical Limited

In terms of healthcare facilities needed by the majority of the low income population, the public healthcare system in 
the KPK region is underprivileged. The system became vulnerable during the corona waves when hospitals were 
forced to deal with immense difculties in order to ght the Corona Pandemic due to a lack of an oxygen central 
supply system.

New ASU for KPK region

Medical Oxygen is the primary treatment for the majority of patients who are suffering severe COVID-19 symptoms. 
That's why WHO recommends that all countries focus on the development of smooth medical oxygen supply to 
hospitals.

Most hospitals located in the farthest area or at higher elevations in the region are supplied by Oxygen cylinders and 
transported through trucks. The challenge is to increase the supply of Medical Oxygen while reducing cost so that it's 
accessible where it's needed most. This requires investment and commitment to put Medical Liquid Oxygen 
production facility in the province.

In order to meet regional demand and increase its market share, Ghani Chemical has taken the initiative to build an 
oxygen production facility in the area. This will help the company to achieve economies of scale and pass those cost 
saving to its clients, particularly in the healthcare industry.

In 2023 2nd quarter, the new plant is anticipated to start production.

Furthermore, the shareholders of its subsidiary company Ghani Chemical Industries Limited and G3 Technologies 
Limited (an associated company) in their respective Extra Ordinary General meetings held on May 31, 2022 had 
decided to merge both the companies under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the companies act, 2017. It would greatly 
benecial to your Company as well as shareholders of both the companies. The sanction of the Honorable Lahore 
High Court, Lahore, in this regard is awaited.

The Board of Directors of this Company has announced the below expansion plan:

Ghani Global Glass Limited (subsidiary company)

Apart from the new three line furnace, the management has decided to do the BMR of existing furnace to enhance 
capacity of Neutral Borosilicate Glass Tube USP Type I. With the help of this Furnace we will be in a position to 
enhance our footing of exports in South African countries and other Latin American and eastern European countries. 
With the commissioning of new furnace having additional production line, tube manufacturing capacity will be 
enhanced by about 50% and this furnace is expected to be ready by the end of next calendar year IN SHAA ALLAH.

Furthermore, addition of European ampoule manufacturing machines is also on the cards.  This will increase our 
capacity of ampules to almost 55M per month.  This will be the largest pant in Pakistan having this much capacity. 

We are working on the Export of Glass Ampoules and tubular vials in both Clear Glass & Amber Glass in Latin 
American markets.  For this purpose we have engaged professional agent in this market who is actively working with 
the customers in Latin America and Caribbean Pharma Companies to promote our products and hopefully, we will 
start getting fruits from these activities in coming years.

Efforts are also under way to engage ourselves in supplying of tubler glass vials for the pharmaceutical industry both 
in the Pakistan & outside. This requirement can be met through installing new Italian Machines for the manufacturing 
of vials. This will further boost our revenue and margins as well.

10Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



PAYOUT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The management of your Company strongly believes in passing on the return of investment to their shareholders. 
However keeping in small gure of prot earned during the year as well as ongoing expansion plan, the board of 
directors has skip the announcement of any dividend.

STATUS OF INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED/ SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (HOLDING COMPANY)
Nature of investments by the Company in associated/ subsidiary company and its present status is as under:

thousand)  

Ghani Chemical 
Industries Limited  

Equity Investment  
 
 

Corporate 
Guarantees  

 

2,056,951  
 
 
 

954,000  

 Long Term Investment  

Ghani Global Glass 
Limited 

Equity Investment  
 
 
Corporate 
Guarantees  

1,423,690  
 
 
 

94,900  

 Long Term Investment  
 

 
Rs. 750

 
Million Valid 

upto October 28, 
2025.  

 
Kilowatt Labs 
Technologies 
Limited

 

Equity Investment
 

 

500
  

Long Term Investment
 

 

G3 Technologies 
Limited

 
 

Equity Investment
 

250,000
   

Company Name
 

Nature of 
Investment  

Amount (Rupees 
in thousand  

Benet during the 
year (Rupees in 

Present Status
 

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

The present auditors' M/s. SHINEWING Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants will retire on conclusion of 
Annual General Meeting being held on October 28, 2022. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of 
Directors has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

SHARE PRICE TREND 

Name of Company      : Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Trading Symbol          : GGL

Share price trend of the Company at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) during the year ended June 30, 2022 
remain as under:

Period 
Share Price  (Rs.)  Daily Average  

of Trading Volume  High Low  Close  

1st Quarter (Jul-Sep 2021) 51.25 34.53  35.52  14,112,500  

2nd Quarter (Oct-Dec 2021) 40.64 20.91  24.12  9,620,985  

3rd
 Quarter (Jan-Mar 2022) 25.49 13.92  17.29  8,745,667  
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Rs. 750 Million Valid
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-
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-

- Long Term Investment



Names of Members of Audit Committee are as under: 

HR&R AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee. It comprises four members, of 
whom one is independent, two are non-executive and one is executive director. 

Names of Members of HR & R Committee are as under: 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

In compliance with the requirements of Section 228 of the Companies Act 2017, consolidated nancial statements 
of the Company along with auditors and directors report thereon have been attached with the nancial statements 
of the Company. 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Code of Corporate Governance the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019) has 
been implemented. The representation of independent directors has been linked with the restructuring of the board 
not later than next election of Directors. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

A Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is annexed. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The board of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has adopted code of conduct for its Board of Directors and the 
employees. All concerns are informed of these codes and are required to observe the rules of conduct in relation to 
customers, suppliers and regulations. 

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER 

The Company is acting as holding company of its subsidiaries (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited and Ghani Global 
Glass Limited) and has contributed Rs. 56.35 million (2021: Rs. 55.4 million) in shape of taxes, duties and levies 
paid to central, provincial government and local authorities. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises four members, of whom one is independent and three are 
non-executive directors.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT 

At present no remuneration to any executive director, Chief Executive and/or any person performing duties for the 
Company is paid. Accordingly any scheme for staff retirement benets is not being maintained by the Company. 

4th Quarter (Apr-Jun 2022) 22.75 14.81  16.51  10,072,466  

Annual for the year 51.25 13.92  16.51  10,608,640  

Name of Director Category Designation in Committee   

Mahmood Ahmed Independent director Chairman 

Haz Farooq Ahmad Non-executive director Member 

Rabia Atique Non-executive director Member 

Hafsa Masroor Non-executive director Member 

The Audit Committee has its terms of reference which were determined by the Board of Directors in accordance 
with the guidelines provided in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

Executive director

Ch. Umair Waqar

Atique Ahmad Khan

Name of Director Category Designation in Committee   

 Independent director Chairman 

  Member 
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RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS 

The Company is committed to establishing mutually benecial relations with all stakeholders, stock exchange, 
SECP and other business partners of the Company. Alhamdulillah during the period under review relations with all 
stakeholders remained cordial. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company is committed to both sustainable business practices and its responsibilities as a corporate citizen. We 
believe that the Corporate Social Responsibility is primarily about conducting business in a transparent and ethical 
way that not only enhances value of all of our stakeholders but also gives support to the events that enhance the 
wellbeing of the community. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility and guidelines for corporate governance are steps in the right direction. 

The Company also supports a clean environment and motivates its subsidiary companies for this cause. The 
Company also tries its level best that the business activities must be environment-friendly and not to be hazardous to 
the society. 

The Company endeavors to be a trusted corporate entity and fullls the responsibility towards the environment and 
society in general. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors, which consist of Seven (07) members, have responsibility to independently and 
transparently monitor the performance of the Company and take strategic decision to achieve sustainable growth in 
the Company value. 

Total Number of directors: 

Description

Male

Female

Total

Number of Directors

05

02

07

Composition of directors: 

Number of Directors

02

04

Categories 

Independent directors

Other non-executive directors

01Executive directors

Total 07

The Chairman board of directors is among the non-executive directors. 

A written notice of the board meeting along with working papers was sent to the members seven days before the 
meeting. 

A total of ve meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended June 30, 2022. Leave of absence 
was granted to the directors who could not attend some of the board meetings. 

The present board of directors were elected in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 28, 2020 for 
a period of three years and shall retire on October 30, 2023. 

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

The remuneration of the directors is determined by the Board as per provisions of section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2017 on the basis of standards in the market and reects demand to competencies and efforts in the light of the 
scope of their work and responsibilities of the directors. 

Haz Farooq Ahmad

Hafsa Masroor

 Non-executive director Member 

 Non-executive director Member 
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Remuneration of Executive directors including CEO are reviewed annually by the board of directors. 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, no remuneration and/fee is paid to chief executive ofcer, executive directors, 
non-executive directors and independent directors for performing their duties and attending the meetings of board of 
directors and/or committees of the board. 

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW 

The chairman's review deals with the overall performance of the board and effectiveness of the role played by the 
board in achieving the company's objectives for the year ended June 30, 2022 in compliance with section 192 (4) of 
the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed. 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

A pattern of shareholding as required under section 227(2) (f) of the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed. 

CHANGE OF INDEPENDENT SHARE REGISTRAR

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 28, 2022 had decided to change the independent share registrar 
of the company from M/s Vision Consulting Limited to M/s Digital Custodian Company Limited, Perdesi House, Old 
Queen Road, Karachi w.e.f. July 01, 2022. 

STATUS OF STOCK OPTIONS UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 

The Board of directors on August 02, 2021 had allocated 2,799,364 Ordinary Shares of the Company to the 
employees of subsidiary companies at the rate of PKR 30/- (with a premium of Rs. 20/- per share), in accordance 
with the Chapter VI – Employee Stock Option Scheme, under the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations 
2020. It was also approved by the shareholders in the last AGM held on October 23, 2021. However, due to adverse 
stock market conditions, the scheme was not materialized. Under these circumstances, the Board has decided to 
refer the matter to the shareholders for seeking specic authority to review and revise the previous offered price/rate 
so that allocated quota may be taken up by the employees.”

MAJOR EVENTS 

No material changes or commitments affecting the nancial position of the Company have occurred between the end 
of nancial year of the Company and date of this report, except the following:-

Alhamdulillah, 15% Bonus shares declared by the board of directors of your company (Ghani Global Holdings 
Limited) has also successfully completed and Alhamdulillah Bonus Shares credited into respective accounts of 
the shareholders in accordance with time schedule.

1-

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL/one of the subsidiary Companies and the largest manufacturer of 
medical and industrial gases in Pakistan) has disinvested 39,800,000 ordinary shares of G3 Technologies Limited 
(GTECH/formerly Service Fabrics Limited) an associated undertaking.

2-

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The directors express their deep appreciation to our valued stakeholders who placed their condence in the 
Company. We would like to express sincere appreciation to the dedication of Company's employees to their 
professional obligations and cooperation by the bankers, government agencies, which have enabled the Company 
and its subsidiaries to display good performance both in operational and nancial elds. 

We thank our shareholders who reposed their condence on management of the Company, the ofcials of the SECP, 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange and all government functionaries. Needless to mention, nothing could have achieved 
without special blessings of ALLAH Subhanatallah.

Lahore

October 04, 2022

On behalf of the Board

HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD

(DIRECTOR)

ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN

(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)
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same is considered by Internal Auditor on regular basis.
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™D�Zzg,iZzgÍḡZŠZgzVÆ¬zy6‡g�XÅzzÐvZigi«Š¶~»x[ƒðX



2nò†ÚnàÒ1q^ñˆå…µç…H

Æ�1geÅù¦»g¤ŠÏZzgvÆ£œÆ”wÅ{§1geÃñWgzwÆ0Z!ò‚w 192(4) ÅŠi 2017 gZ

cç}»Y^{ÝìX 2022 Žy 30

u’“�]…]áÒ^µn9†á

Æ_.‰ŠZgZy»ðyÝìX 227(2)(f) ÅŠi 2017 gZ

�nò†…qŠ9†]…Òoif‚m×o

Ðxizný4hÓ45ë
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Å”h´â]»Dg�XZÏaeÚZÝZz?m™@ìž 19DCOVID zWxZy%ÉVÅZÒe»ãŠ~´`ìŽ

Óx̃´hßVÃ?WxÅûZg�ÛZb6ÂzŠ,X
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ÆZWZ]Æ!zŽŠW\Åvo«~ps 19DCOVID Zv¬àÆaz™xÐik‚wÆŠzgZyÔÓxtçÙúZïZzg

�6 1780 ÆZ!ò‚w~û 2022 ƒ̂ìXvÅ6ze„ÃâgL~JqÆv̂ÅûŠy$y4ƒg„ìXŽy

414 ‚ZŸ†ƒZXÀo«Ô‚wÅÚ 8 �gz9¶ZSbÔ‚wÅÚû~ 1645 Èƒ²¦‚̧w~û

�g„²Ô 83 �gz9Zzg 21 �gz9ƒŠXZk‚w„»g~ÅÑ†ZzgZOòÑ†!nK 420 �gz9Ð(|™

�gz9ƒ̂Xv 36 �gz9Ð7|™ 32 �gz9¶XZOòÑ†~ 109 �gz9Zzg 25 ‚w}Ñ†!nK

�gz9ÐÁƒ™ 110 4ƒZ6z�+÷Zzgzgå
´4545ÿ GFG

H
ÑÅV6ƒäzZà+÷Ñ†Ì %21Ð%20 »W6|o«

�gz9o«qÝHXŽ 198 �gz9Æ£«~Z:Zvvä 133 �gz9ƒ̂ìX¦‚̧wƒäzZáo« 80

0.85 gz9ì²¦¸‚wÆŠzgZyvÅ°‰Wæy 0.83 4ƒZZkÆË~°‰Wæy 13%Ð%10 ZSb

gz9¶X

Ã»ƒäzZá‚wÆa¦‚̧wÆ‚BW\ÅvÆZëâ1Cò»ñZi:Šgzfsì: 2022 Žy

Particulars
 June 2022 June 2021  

Rupees  Rupees  
Gross Sales  

 

 
Net sales   
Gross prot

   
Administrative expenses

   
Selling and distribution expenses

   
Operating prot

 

1,780,309,313

1,505,037,216

419,968,813

(83,040,779)

(21,093,265)

315,834,769
  Earning per share 0.82

1,645,391,486

1,398,168,264

414,153,503

(109,458,591)

(25,205,477)

279,489,435

0.85



 

~Ngz~»DgƒäÅ7ÍðÅ̂ìX 2023 (Æ_.0ÎyÅuâà‚w ADB Z¨ðFªCJ)

ëZy™D�žc[Ð0yâZzgZOŠ~Z&q]ZëÎZŅ̃ZòâàZæZŠÃÃu™,ÏÔF¹Ã’qŠ,ÏÔZzg$zgzVÅ

™«Æa�YZzgFªCZyZY]ÃôpgOÏX

ZOŠ~`(~uJ(ÏZPxÅbàZzguÃL™äZzgâ1CZzgÛzã‘iÃbw™äÆaÎZŅ̃Zòâ1C-Æ

bà”{6z¤ZxÆ�Z&q]ÆÚfÐú0ñÇX

Æ‚BîsæCç@{Ô%ùâgLÅ¢o EPCL ÆaŠ\K‰¡ÅŠN¸wÆç@}Ô 2022–2023 âà‚w

â8ÔZzg‚wÅŠzu~Ž„~ÂZ*ðÅ†V~áµ¶tƒvÅF¹~Zë™ŠZgZŠZ™,ÐX

Æßo+×çeØ+¡ŒÖÛn9;

ÐŠgWæ~�Šw†kk[Ô†kZ
'.3ð GF²Zzg†kzZ}Å»g~Zzg�Ûz|~̂zsìXZq‚wÆŠzgZy 2015 "‰.Þ†k™

(ÔŠgxäZzg(}eä6̧òµV~ZK¡¬]Ãàg™ä~»x[ƒ̂˜Vtv MNCs tfvMZÁòµV)

ZyµVÆ‚Bï™»x™g„ìZzgâgL~¼Š.gRiÆ!zŽŠZqZë»gz!gqÝ™g„ìX

23Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Particulars
 

Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS
 

Variance
 

 
Jun-22

 
Jun-21

 
Rs. 000

 
%

 

Sales
        

4,781,791 
        

4,350,558 
        

431,233 
 
10%

Sales -
 
net

        
4,190,726 

        
3,837,826 

        
352,900 

 
9%

Cost of sales
       

(2,444,054)
       

(2,180,711)
       

(263,343)
 
12%

-        As % of net sales  58%  57%    
             Gross profit         1,746,672         1,657,115          89,557  5%

-        As % of net  sales  42%  43%    
Distribution cost           (303,967)           (302,109)           (1,858)  1%
-        As % of net sales  7%  8%    
Administrative expenses           (163,298)           (145,612)         (17,686)  12%
-
        

As % of net sales
 

4%
 

4%
   

Other expenses
          

(100,626)
           

(89,507)
        

(11,119)
 
12%

-
        

As % of net sales
 

2%
 

2%
   Other income

           
211,830 

            
55,092 

        
156,738 

 
285%

-

        

As % of net sales

 

5%

 

1%

   Profit from operations

        

1,390,611 

        

1,174,979 

        

215,632 

 

18%
-

        

As % of net sales

 

33%

 

31%

   
Finance cost

          

(229,626)

          

(208,265)

        

(21,361)

 

10%
-

        

As % of net sales

 

5%

 

5%

   
Share of prot of an Associated 
Company

              

2,844 

                   

-

    
          

2,844 

 

100%

Profit before taxation

        

1,163,829 

           

966,714 

        

197,115 

 

20%

Taxation

          

(351,486)

          

(275,597)

        

(75,889)

 

28%
Profit after taxation

           

812,343 

           

691,117 

        

121,226 

 

18%
- As % of net sales 19% 18%
Earnings per share - restated 2.33 2.28 - -



Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS  Variance  

  Jun-22  Jun-21  Rs. 000  %  

Sales 6,504,668         5,955,603  549,065  9%  

Sales - net 5,622,426         5,194,462  427,964  8%  

Cost of sales (3,434,875)  
      

(3,112,522)  (322,353)  10%  

Gross prot 2,187,551         2,081,940  105,611  5%  

Distribution cost (325,063)  
         

(337,379)  12,316  -4%  

Administrative expenses (269,450)  
         

(301,985)  32,535  -11%  

Other expenses (116,346)  
          

(99,594)  (16,752)  17%  
Other income 216,281             61,900  154,381  249%  
Prot from operations 1,692,973         1,404,882  288,091  21%  

Finance cost (299,182)  
         

(307,219)  8,037  -3%  
Share of prot of an Associated Company 4,150                    -     4,150  100%  
Prot before taxation 1,397,941         1,097,663  300,278  27%  
Taxation (394,607)  

         
(305,237)  (89,370)  29%  

Prot after taxation 1,003,334            792,426  210,908  27%  
Combined earnings per share 2.05                 2.04              -             -    

mÓr^Ò^…Ò†�+o

Ã»ƒäzZáâ1C‚w»Ô‚wÐñZi:Š»g™ŠÏÆ‚BŠgzfsìX 2022 Žy 30

ÆßoÒnÛnÓØ]Þ;‰9†mˆÖÛn9;

(QZzg?uVZzgØÅ»g~Zzg�Ûz|~̂zsìX GCIL "¡Z&7m™)

Z:v¦‚̧wÅZÏæ]Æ£«~Zkâ�ZŠZg}Å�Ûz|ZzgZ!òòÅ»g™ŠÏ~»°ZŸ†ƒZìX

Æ£«~ 2021 �gz96ÈƒðŽ¦‚̧wŽy 4,782 Ã»ƒäzZá‚wÆavÅ‚Ñ:�Ûz| 2022 Žy

�1,747 �gz9Ð(|™ 1,657 %»i'Š„ZŸ†Š3g„ìÔZ:vXù¦o« 10 �gz9Å�Ûz|¶ÔŽž 4,350

‚ZŸ†ìX„ÆZyZY]ZzgZOòZyZY]Ì�Ûz|Æ‚ 5 �gz9»ZŸ†Š3cŠìŽ 90 gz9ƒŠìT~

�gz9ìŽÔ 1,390 Ã»ƒäzZÑv»W6|o« 2022 ‚JÁƒñXŽy 07 ‚Ð 08 ÆÒpÐ!nK

�gz9 208 %»ZŸ†Š3g;ìXvÅâ1CÑ†Ì 18 �gz9»ZŸ†ªCÙ™@ìÔŽž 216 �gz9åŽ 1,751 ‚w

�gz9 812 �gz9ÆÐ(|™ 691 ‚»ZŸ†ªCÙ™CìXv»{Øo« 10 �gz9ƒ̂ìŽž 230 Ð(|™

Ð(|™ 2.28 gz9 EPS ‚g;XZ:vÔZkÆ_.Ôv» 19 ‚Ð 18 ƒŠìÔª‚ÆÒpÐ{Øo«Úƒ

gz9ƒŠìX 2.33

Ã»ƒäzZáââ{ÆnW\ÅZkfvÆZëâ1Cò»ñZi:øfs 2022 Žy 30 Ô‚wÅZÏæ]Æ‚B

ì:
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6z¤ZxÅbàÐâ1Cz‚Ã'ŒÛZggnƒñâgLÆ_!] IMF ZkÅ§sZqŠxìXÂîg6 FY2023 zÃ¹P

Æ·ƒÃ4¯ä~ÌæŠAÏX¼Z»kÅ†V~qD¶»gDyÌZqplWÒ´#ÖìZzgZ¤'ŒÛZgg;Âto FX Zzg

ÆÛzã3ÂVÅ7iÃcVîg64™}ÇZzgâ1Cõf6ú�ÛZë™}ÇX

¤ŠÔTÐ¬@Zzg£ò–zZ)îZ�ág-VÆ 7.5% ÆŠzgZy FY20224Q Z& 100DKSE 0Îy»lâgu

ƒŠX 12.3% ~ù¦o«t FY2022 ™Dƒñ

5Ó#ÖçÙZ&q]ZzgÎZŅ̃ZòâgL~0ÎyÅ‚ÄÃ4¯äÆaJœ™g„ìŽžZ[Ì¢zg~ìXoÃ

ZKŠgWæZ]ZzgZyZY]ŠzâVÃÁ™äZzgçÙßgŽwÃe%Å¢zg]ìXZk‚~ÃlYg~�ZzgZyìž¢„

³†ÇX¾æCZŠZâ]0ÎyÆaæŠÇgU"ƒM�ÔptîsZ=Ciˆl™ä»z‰ÜìX

eßn^�p‰†+†Ún^7

vÅãŠ~u¤òZkÆâ�ZzǵµV~uât»g~»ZOx™*ìX

Ú^Ön^ioÒ^…Ò†�+o

Ãàg”{ 2019D02D06 ~ÔdiÑƒg;rg^ÔÑƒgä 221137 Ð*ÇƒäzZáÔÎwZzg¥� 2018 ŽÑðÔ 01

õÂVÔZOâ]ZzgyâÅZYÅz~ÔväZC�Ã8Z&g"5½5ë HGE
Y

ÔT~ÓxZUPÔzZ‚]Ô£tÔÄZyZzgŠpi}

�áï�vÆâ�ZŠZg{ÃvHX

ZkÆ_.ÔZkæ]ÆŠzgZyÔväzZzgQWÑ]ÅŠWæãÐ0ˆgC&�Ûz|Åu¤xVÅ�ŽvÅ§s

ÐYg~™Š{»g7gfÇg6zZzgY3ÂV6ËVÐo«ìX

Â×nv‚å‰1Ò^…Ò†�+o

Ã»ƒñ‚wÆZëâ1Cò»*‚̧wÆ‚BñZi:ŠgzfsìX 2022 Žy 30 W\ÅvÆ

Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ Except EPS  Variance  

  Jun-22 Jun-21  Rs. 000  %  

Gross sales   107,743      8,158    99,585  1221%  

Net sales    91,838      6,973    84,865  1217%  

Direct cost   (70,930)    (6,366)   (64,564)  1014%  

Gross profit    20,908  607    20,301  3344%  
Administrative expenses   (11,616)  (33,136)    21,520  -65%  
Other  expenses     (2,042)    (3,117)      1,075  -34%  
Other income      7,563    10,607     (3,044)  -29%  
Profit / (loss) before taxation    14,813   (25,039)    39,852  -159%  
Taxation     (4,337)    (6,706)      2,369  -35%  
Profit / (loss) after taxation    10,476   (31,745)    42,221  -133%  
Earnings / (loss) per share  restated      0.033     (0.118)   -    -   
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di‰ŠZgZy

Z?xzizg9*îGZv'»t

Æ¥%]Æ�‚Ñ:º”{Zzg)Šâàˆ!]'Zñ 2017 "‰.Þƒ®g™)‚—"v™(ÆeZ]IZygZ

7™DƒñpÙCk™D�X 2022 Žy 30 ‚w
&B-+*î
EG

¬@–zZ)î°xZPxä±u6ZCZWeZÑìTÆË~Z�ÛZoig~ZŸ†Zzg™.Z»ƒ.Äg{(kìXÓ#Öä

WðZ*ZpÆç@}Ãôp¯äÆaJâàZŠZâ]™*Ñzq™Šb�ÔT»³WÒ{P�â‘V~Lf{]ÔNzw

”{â1CÂZiyZzg0ZgZOŠ~F¹Åßg]~‚tWñÇX@ëÔZ3Y0kêzZzgâ1CñÆZŠZâ]Æ!gëgfÐ(Ï

ŠgzwZg]~ZŸ†áµìX

~̧òÏ8Wð 2022 pgZuZzgZgïÅ¬@†V~ÚZŸ±Ô8ÆWgÅŠg~¶ZzgÂZ*ðÆ0kêzÆË~Žy

ÆWy~Û~ÁƒäÐ 23D. FY2022 ÆŠzgZyŠ@¶̂X%¦‚̧w 2008 ‚JVˆÔtRŽWy~!g 21.3

~ZZÂZ*ðÅÑjVÆZWZ]Æåîg6ªCÙƒäÆ‚BZŒP̧VÆŠzgZyZ�ÛZoigÆ—g�ÅÂµìX CPI ¬Ô

3.6% ~t SPLY JVŠÔ² 4.0% ÆŠzgZyYe~8Æ 2022 â1C§sÔ¼èŠ@ˆÔZzgÄg{ŽÑðDâga

‚ZŸ±Æ!zŽŠå&icŠ{ZyZY]ÆaZEwHŠXWðZ*ZpÆgÉèoÆ_.â1C¿ 28 åXtLg-E~

‚Æâ1CÄg}Æ@sÆ‚B 4.9 Æa 2023 »Pâà‚w 23D2022 Å§sß3ƒñÔÓ#Öäâà‚w

‚ZŸ†ZLg&̂g^Å 23 ‚Æ£«~ìXZp!WgÆL@s~ 7 ~áµ 2022 7HìŽžâà‚w

Zq½ƒÇXĻÑ]»ŠZÔZ:ZEwâ1Cz‚ÅãìX % ™qZzgZq%ûicŠ{4LÆfÆ!zŽŠ

ÐCOVID (áµìÔY 6.2% Zzg}â]+ 7.2% ÔQ+ 4.4% )ig¦+ 6.0% ~ÇYe~8Å%: 2022 âà‚w

´â1CZzgâ1Cø»]Æù¦ZWäCÅªŠ]~%~zeZÑìX@ëÔ‚!°xÂZiyÅzzÐŠzCÙ~Äg}~

ZŸ†ƒZìÔŽçÙNgz~ÅJ-ŠêìX0ZgF¹ÆaÔâ1Cz‚Ã%œ~wqÝìZzgqw„~Z´y™Š{
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ÎçÚoÚÃnŽkÒ^q^ñˆå

z!ðFg~äZ‡VZzgØV6–qZWZ]Æ‚B)©àeäÆ¬@çÙdZyÃÀŠcåX¼̃´ 19DCOVID

ZzǵºŠzuzVÐicŠ{OWƒñXZkÆúÅzŽ;]FkZzgë{�X0ŒÆŽZ!]ZzgZkÆŴäzZáò(}

eä6Z¸XF˜´ä¸òèVÃ–gZŠ¶Zzg"gziÇgßÍVÃgµŠ¶Æaøu
"5¼?ç
FGEE*ÇK�Xz!ð%nä

°¾WæãÆç@}Æ‚BÔicŠ{F̃Ã́‚Š!iZg~~eZwŠcX
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NO OF SHAREHOLDERS

PATTERN OF THE SHAREHOLDING
As on 30-06-2022

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD
NUMBER OF SHARES

From To

FORM - 34

1

101

501

1001

5001

10001

15001

20001

25001

30001

35001

40001

45001

50001

55001

60001

65001

70001

75001

80001

85001

90001

95001

100001

105001

110001

115001

120001

125001

130001

135001

140001

145001

155001

160001

165001

170001

175001

100

500

1000

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

115000

120000

125000

130000

135000

140000

145000

150000

160000

165000

170000

175000

180000

711                           

1309                         

1556                      

3563                      

1168                      

455                      

329                      

211                      

141                      

79                      

65                      

33                      

86                      

40                      

41                      

22                      

32                      

20                      

20                      

13                      

14                      

10                         

37                      

6                         

8                         

8                         

6                         

7                         

6                         

3                         

2                         

6                         

5                         

6                         

4                         

3                         

5                         

3                         

27,484 

503,367 

1,325,146 

9,608,171 

9,039,760 

5,706,323 

6,054,335 

4,916,056 

4,003,015 

2,603,166 

2,461,445 

1,410,488 

4,215,445 

2,118,898 

2,400,443 

1,382,940 

2,179,501 

1,466,449 

1,570,878 

1,062,828 

1,233,437 

924,723 

3,669,697 

616,460 

870,250 

906,161 

705,772 

861,573 

758,615 

393,715 

280,000 

854,178 

750,000 

953,500 

647,346 

508,586 

866,494 

533,500 
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195001

200001

210001

215001

220001

230001

235001

240001

245001

250001

255001

260001

265001

270001

275001

295001

300001

305001

310001

325001

335001

340001

345001

360001

375001

385001

390001

395001

400001

405001

415001

435001

460001

465001

490001

495001

500001

515001

545001

565001

595001

615001

645001

665001

200000

205000

215000

220000

225000

235000

240000

245000

250000

255000

260000

265000

270000

275000

280000

300000

305000

310000

315000

330000

340000

345000

350000

365000

380000

390000

395000

400000

405000

410000

420000

440000

465000

470000

495000

500000

505000

520000

550000

570000

600000

620000

650000

670000

13

2

1

3

3

4

2

1

6

4

2

3

2

1

1

4

3

2

1

1

2

3

1

1

1

2

1

3

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

3

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

2,594,000 

410,000 

213,000 

654,650 

670,000 

933,010 

471,816 

245,000 

1,499,450 

1,012,180 

515,390 

791,693 

535,140 

275,000 

280,000 

1,200,000 

910,500 

612,950 

315,000 

326,384 

680,000 

1,035,000 

350,000 

362,500 

375,982 

775,600 

391,000 

1,200,000 

404,050 

410,000 

417,000 

439,000 

1,390,242 

467,000 

494,676 

1,500,000 

501,500 

1,032,345 

550,000 

568,310 

600,000 

617,500 

650,000 

670,000 
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690001

750001

790001

795001

865001

875001

1095001

1155001

1210001

1290001

1425001

1540001

1610001

1640001

1695001

1795001

1880001

2020001

2130001

2395001

2580001

4040001

7310001

7820001

9935001

10890001

21685001

46440001

49200001

695000

755000

795000

800000

870000

880000

1100000

1160000

1215000

1295000

1430000

1545000

1615000

1645000

1700000

1800000

1885000

2025000

2135000

2400000

2585000

4045000

7315000

7825000

9940000

10893000

44390000

46450000

49252000

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

691,500 

752,000 

792,650 

1,600,000 

866,295 

879,595 

1,100,000 

1,158,000 

1,212,800 

1,295,000 

1,429,000 

1,544,000 

1,615,000 

1,640,675 

1,700,000 

1,800,000 

1,884,000 

2,025,000 

2,134,154 

2,400,000 

2,585,000 

4,041,000 

7,314,171 

7,820,645 

9,935,631 

10,892,468 

44,381,374 

46,448,257 

49,251,672

10157 321,926,900 TOTAL:-
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Catagories of Shareholders
Number of

Shareholders
Number of
Share held

Percentage
%

CATAGORIES OF  SHAREHOLDERS
As At June 30, 2022

TOTAL

                   

Directors, Chief Executive Ofcer and their 

Spouse(s) and Children

Financial Institutions

Investment Companies

Modaraba Companies

Provident Funds & Mutual Funds  

Insurance Companies

Joint Stock Companies

Government Institutions

Individuals

Others

9

2

1

2

14

2

64

1

10,052 

10

10,157

      166,178,608 

             210,500 

          1,100,000 

               64,500 

          2,496,831 

                    550 

        20,473,952 

             122,977 

      128,750,289 

          2,528,693

321,926,900 

51.620 

0.065

0.342

0.020   

0.776 

0.0002

6.360

0.040

      39.994

        0.785

100
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Operating Results

Sales (gross)

Gross prot

Prot/Loss before tax

Financial data

Fixed assets

Capital work  in progress

Intangible assets

Long term deposits
Long term investment

Current assets

Current liabilities

Financed  by:

Ordinary  capital
Reserves

Un appropriated prot

Shareholder’s equity

Loan  from sponsors
           (interest fee)

Non-current liabilities

Finances and deposits

Funds invested

Earning per-share (Rs.)

Cash Dividend %

Bonus Share % 

Right Share  %

Rs. (in 000)

2020

11,500

-

645

-
-

70

-
2,779,337

3,485
2,670

2,782,822

1,533,059
522,137
724,956

2,289,152

-

-

-

0.003

-

-

-

2,782,822

2018 20172019

2,053,432

568,634

181,084

2,838,962
100,146

70
57,756

593,000

1,374,818
654,930

4,309,822

1,247,813
535,067
566,436

2,349,316

1,322,006

1,960,506

1.04

-

6

-

4,309,822

638,500

2,330,253

638,698

158,785

3,039,513
4,800

14,631

68,257
593,000

1,606,976
1,426,491

3,900,686

1,322,682
460,198
724,141

2,507,021

231,450

1,162,215

1,393,665

1.14

-

5

-

3,900,686

-

-

239

-
-

70

-
2,779,267

1,973
1,803

2,779,507

1,533,059
522,137
724,311

2,779,507

-

-

-

0.001

-

-

-

2,779,507

2021

8,158

607

(25,039)

-
-

70

-
3,481,141

295,255
16,241

2,799,365

693,211
267,649

3,760,225

-

-

(0.118)

-

10%
15%

66%

3,776,466

3,776,466

-

(Restated)

2022

107,473

20,908

14,813

-
-

70

-
3,581,211

210,143
20,653

3,219,270

551,431
-

3,770,701

-

-

0.033

-

-

-

3,791,354

3,791,354

-
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Notice is hereby given that 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ghani Global Holdings Limited (the Company) 
will be held on Friday October 28, 2022 at 12:00 PM at registered ofce of the Company at 10-N, Model Town Ext., 
Lahore to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 
together with Directors' and Auditors ' Reports thereon.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023 and to x their remuneration. 

3. Any other business with permission of the Chair.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

M/S DIGITAL CUSTODIAN COMPANY 
4-F, Perdesi House, Old Queens Road KARACHI 

Telephone No. 021 32419770, 
Email: muhammad.suleman@digitalcustodian.com

Notes:

1.       BOOK CLOSURE

Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration 
from Friday, October 21, 2022 to Friday, October 28, 2022 (both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at the 
ofce of the share registrar

To consider and if deemed t for investment up to Rs. 200 million in Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL) in shape 
of loans and advances, by passing the special resolution with or without modications under section 199 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

4.

Place:  Lahore  
Dated: October 04, 2022

                                                                                      By order of the Board

                                                                                                      FARZAND ALI

Company Secretary

To consider and if deemed t for investment up to Rs. 200 million in Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) in 
shape of loans and advances, by passing the special resolution with or without modications under section 199 of 
the Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

5.

To review/revise the previous offered rate/price for allocation and allotment of 2,799,364 ordinary shares of the 
Company to the employees of subsidiary companies under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS), in view of 
current market conditions and to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to take appropriate decision in 
this respect, by passing special resolution as proposed in the Statement under section 134(3) of the Companies 
Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM.

6.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETING2.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote 
instead of him/her. Proxies in order to be effective duly signed, lled and witnessed must be deposited at the 
Registered Ofce of the Company, along with the attested copies of valid Computerized National Identity Card 
(CNIC) or Passport, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 
issued by the SECP for attending the meeting.
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COVID-19 CONTINGENCY PLANNING3.

Due to current COVID-19 situation, the Company intends to convene this AGM with minimal physical interaction 
of shareholders while ensuring compliance with the quorum requirements and requests the members to 
consolidate their attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies. 

The Company has made arrangements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders, can now 
participate in the AGM proceedings via video link. In order to attend the meeting through video link members are 
requested to share the below information at agmggl@ghaniglobal.com, for their appointment/registration and 
proxy verication by or before Friday October 21, 2022 as per below format. 

Full Name Cell Number
Registered

Email Address
CNIC Number

Company
Name

Folio/CDC No.

Video link details and login credentials will be shared with those members whose registered emails containing all 
the particulars are received on or before Friday October 21, 2022.

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email 
address agmggl@ghaniglobal.com. 

Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by consolidating their attendance 
through proxies.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:4.

The Company has circulated annual nancial statements to its members through CD at their registered address. 
Printed copy of above referred statements can be provided to members upon request. Request Form is available 
on website of the company i.e. www.ghaniglobal.com.

 AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:5.

The audited nancial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022have been made available on 
Company's website  in addition to annual and quarterly nancial statements for the prior www.ghaniglobal.com
years.

CHANGE IN ADDRESS AND CNIC 6.

Members are requested to notify/submit the following information / documents, in case of book entry securities in 
CDS to their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company by quoting their 
folio numbers and name of the Company at the below mentioned address of the Company's Share Registrar, if not 
earlier notied/submitted: 

Change in their address, if any 

Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested to submit 
the same along with folio numbers at earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar.

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND (IF ANY) ELECTRONICALLY (MANDATORY) 7.

Under the second proviso of Section 242 of the Company Act, 2017, listed companies are required to pay cash 
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. Accordingly, Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number 
(IBAN) together with a copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of 
non-submission, all future dividend payments may be withheld.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

The material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting are given below:
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Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions, with or without modications to obtain 
approval of shareholders of the Company under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017:

Resolved That pursuant to the requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Global 
Holdings Limited (GGL/the Company) be and is hereby authorized to make investment upto PKR 200 million 
(Rupees Two hundred million only) in Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL)  an associated company, by way of 
advances and loans, as and when required by GGGL provided that the return on such advances and loans 
shall not be less than rate of 3 months KIBOR +85 bps and that such advances and loans shall be repayable 
within three (3) years period starting from the date of payment of such advances and loans as per other terms 
and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Resolved Further That the above said resolution shall be valid for a period of 3 years and the Chief Executive 
Ofcer and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby singly empowered and authorized to 
undertake the decision of said investment as and when deemed appropriate and necessary in the best interest 
of the Company and its shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary, incidental and ancillary 
including execution of any and all documents and agreements as may be required in this regard and to do all 
acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the spirit 
and intent of the special resolution for making investment from time to time.

Agenda Item No. 4  

The Board of Directors of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has proposed the investment of Rs. 200 million in shape of 
loans and advances in Ghani Global Glass Limited being associated/subsidiary undertaking of the Company.

Agenda Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has proposed the investment of Rs. 200 million in shape of 
loans and advances in Ghani Chemical Industries Limited being subsidiary of the Company.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions, with or without modications to obtain 
approval of shareholders of the Company under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017:

Resolved That pursuant to the requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Global 
Holdings Limited (GGL/the Company) be and is hereby authorized to make investment upto PKR 200 million 
(Rupees two hundred million only) in Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) an associated company, by 
way of advances and loans, as and when required by GCIL provided that the return on such advances and 
loans shall not be less than rate of 3 months KIBOR +85 bps and that such advances and loans shall be 
repayable within three (3) years period starting from the date of payment of such advances and loans as per 
other terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Resolved Further That the above said resolution shall be valid for a period of 3 years and the Chief Executive 
Ofcer and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby singly empowered and authorized to 
undertake the decision of said investment as and when deemed appropriate and necessary in the best interest 
of the Company and its shareholders and to take all steps and actions necessary, incidental and ancillary 
including execution of any and all documents and agreements as may be required in this regard and to do all 
acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the spirit 
and intent of the special resolution for making investment from time to time.
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Agenda Item No. 6

To review/revise the previous offered rate/price for allocation and allotment of 2,799,364 ordinary shares of the 
Company to the employees of subsidiary companies under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS), in view of 
current market conditions and to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to take appropriate decision in this 
respect.

The Directors of the Company are not interested in the aforementioned special business except to the extent those 
executive directors including chief executive which may entitled to the options as an eligible employee.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution, with or without modications, additions 
or deletions:

RESOLVED THAT, that in terms of special resolution passed by shareholders of Ghani Global Holdings Limited 
(GGL/the Company) in their Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021, the offer price for 
allotment/allocation of 2,799,364 ordinary shares of the company to employee of its subsidiary company 
under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby 
authorized to revise the offered rate/price keeping in view of market condition to make the offer successful.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Chief Executive Ofcer and Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby singly authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be deemed necessary, proper 
or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the aforementioned Resolutions and for matters connected 
therewith or incidental thereto, and to take all necessary steps as required under the law or otherwise under 
the applicable Employees Stock Option Scheme.
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The information required under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 06 December 2017 are as under:  
 

(a)  DISCLOSURES: 
 

(A)Regarding associated company or associated undertaking 
 

Requirement Loans and Advances in Ghani 
Global Glass Limited 

Loans and Advances  in Ghani 
Chemical Industries Limited  

Name of the associated company  Ghani Global Glass Limited 
(GGGL). 
 

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited  

Basis of Relationship Associated Company and common 
directorship 

Associated Company and common 
directorship  

Earnings/(Loss) per share for the 
last three years 

2022:   0.82 

2021:   0.85 

2020:   0.33 
 

2022:    2.33  

2021:      2.28 (restated)  

2020:   (1.22)  
 

Breakup value per share, based on 
latest audited nancial statements 

 

30-6-2022: 9.674 30-6-2022:  15.16  

Financial position, including main 
items of balance sheet and prot 
and loss account on the basis of 
its latest nancial statements; 

Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 
showed: 
                                                                                                 
Profit& Loss:                               
                                    

                               
Rupees   
in “000”

Sales (net)               
Gross prot                
Admin exp.                
Other income             
Prot/Loss                   
 
Financial Position: 
Operating xed  
assets                      
Other non-current  
assets                             
Current assets         
Total Assets             

 
1,505,037 

419,968 
(83,121) 

24,664 
197,939       

2,602,154   

32,254                        
1,452,403 
4,086,813     

 
Paid up  

Audited Financial Statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2022 showed:  
 
Profit& Loss:                     
                                         

Rupees   
in “000”

Sales (net)                      
Gross prot                     
Admin exp.                    
Other income                    
Prot/Loss                         

 
Financial Position:  
Operating xed            
assets                                   
Other non-current  
assets                               
Non-Current Assets  
hold for sale                    
Current assets                
Total  Assets                     

4,190,726  
1,746,672  
(163,293)  

211,830     
812,426  

5, 763,849  
 

461,486  

253,687            
3,146,878  
9,625,900      
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Capital                    2,400,000 
Accumulated Loss    (78,234) 
Loan from                         - 
sponsors                    ________ 
 
Total equity              2,321,765 
 
 
Non- current  
liabilities                     487,618 
Current  
Liabilities                 1,277,429     
        
Total  Equity and  

Liabilities                   4,086,813          
 

Paid up Capital              
Accumulated Loss         
Share premium              
Revaluation surplus           

Total equity                      
 
Non- current liabilities     
 Current liabilities            

3,597,550          
1,258,130                

   300,000 
298,727 

-
_______

5,454,407 

1,425,030 
2,746,463 

            
Total  Equity and  

Liabilities                          9,625,900 

(B)General Disclosures: 
 

Maximum amount of investment 
to be made 

Rs. 200 million as long term loans 
and advances 

Rs. 200 million as long term loans 
and advances 

Purpose, benets likely to accrue 
to the investing company and its 
members from such investment 
and period of investment; 

To earn prots on company’s funds To earn prots on company’s funds 

Sources of funds to be utilized for 
investment  

Through internal sources, equity 
issue and/or other options are 
under planning. 

Through internal sources, equity 
issue and/or other options are under 
planning. 

salient features of the 
agreement(s), if any, with 
associated company or 
associated undertaking with 
regards to the proposed 
investment;    

Agreement will be executed before 
extending the advances and loans 
in accordance with the terms and 
conditions as approved by the 
shareholders. 

Agreement will be executed before 
extending the advances and loans in 
accordance with the terms and 
conditions as approved by the 
shareholders. 

direct or indirect interest of 
directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if 
any, in the associated company or 
associated undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration; 

Currently shareholding position of 
the following directors and majority 
shareholders of the Company 
(Ghani Global Holdings Limited) in 
associated company (GGGL) is as 
under: 
 
                                               
Names of        Number of      Holding                                          

Currently shareholding position of 
the following directors and majority 
shareholders of the Company (Ghani 
Global Holdings Limited) in 
associated company (GCIL) is as 
under: 
                                                
 
Names of        Number of      Holding                                         
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Directors             Shares             %       
 
 
Mr. Masroor  
Ahmad Khan      2,400          0.001  
 
Mr. Atique  
Ahmad Khan      2,400          0.001  
 
Haz Farooq  
Ahmad                2,400          0.001    
 
Chaudhary Umair  
Waqar                    -                       - 
 
Mr. Mahmood  
Ahmed                   60            0.00003              
 
Mrs. Rabia  
Atique                   2,400          0.001          
 
Ms. Hafsa  
Masroor                          -           - 
 
 
The Sponsors directors of GGGL 
holds the following shares in GGL: 
 
 
Names of     Number of       Holding                                          
Directors        Shares                 %       
 
 
Mr. Masroor  
Ahmad Khan    49,251,672        15.29  
 
Mr. Atique  
Ahmad Khan    44,381,374        13.78  
 
Haz Farooq  
Ahmad              46,448,257      14.42  
 
Mr. Ubaid Waqar     -             -  

Directors             Shares             %       
 
 
Mr. Masroor  
Ahmad Khan            2          0.000001  
 
Mr. Atique  
Ahmad Khan            2          0.000001  
 
Haz Farooq  
Ahmad                      2          0.000001  
 
Chaudhary Umair  
Waqar                    -                       - 
 
Mr. Mahmood  
Ahmed                      -              -              
 
Mrs. Rabia  
Atique                 1,107,700       0.307
 
Ms. Hafsa  
Masroor                         -           - 
 
 
 
The Sponsors directors of GCIL 
holds the following shares in GGL: 
 
 
Names of     Number of       Holding                                         
Directors        Shares                 %       
 
 
Mr. Masroor  
Ahmad Khan    49,251,672        15.29 
 
Mr. Atique  
Ahmad Khan    44,381,374        13.78 
 
Haz Farooq  
Ahmad              46,448,257      14.42 
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Mr. Muhammad 
Danish Siddique       -             - 
 
 
Mrs. Ayesha  
Masroor               7,314,171     2.27  
 
Ms. Hafsa  
Masroor                -             - 
 

Mr. Mahmood  
Ahmad                    -             -  
 
Mr. Usman  
Hassan                      -             - 
 
 
Mrs. Saima Sha  
Rana                         -             - 
 
Haz Imran  
Lateef                       -             - 
 

in case any investment in 
associated company or 
associated undertaking has 
already been made, the 
performance review of such 
investment including complete 
information/justication for any 
impairment or write offs 

NIL NIL 

any other important details 
necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction; 

NIL NIL 

 
(b)In case of Equity Investment      NIL 
 
(c)In case of Investment in the form of Guarantee   NIL 
 
 
 
(d) In case of Investments in the form of Loan and Advances  
 

Category wise amount of 
investments 

Rs. 200 million as long term loans 
and advances 

Rs. 200 million as long term loans 
and advances 

Average borrowing cost of the 
investing company 

3 months KIBOR + 85bps 
 

3 months KIBOR + 85bps 
 

Rate of interest, markup, prot, 
fees or commission etc. to be 
charged 

3 months KIBOR + 85bps 
but not less than annual average 
borrowing cost 

3 months KIBOR + 85bps 
but not less than annual average 
borrowing cost 

Particulars of collateral security to 
be obtained in relation to the 

NIL  NIL  
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proposed investment. 
 
If the investment carry conversion 
features: 
 

NA NA 

Repayment schedule and terms & 
conditions of loans or advances 
to be given to the associated 
company or associated 
undertaking. 
 

- Repayment of loan will be within 
three years from the date of 
payment with payment of prot on 
quarterly basis. 

 
-any other term or conditions 
approved by shareholders of the 
company. 

- Repayment of loan will be within 
three years from the date of 
payment with payment of prot on 
quarterly basis. 

 
-any other term or conditions 
approved by shareholders of the 
company. 

 
 
In pursuance to Regulation No. 3 (3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated 
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 6 December 2017, the directors of the Company 
have carried out due diligence for the proposed investment in its associated companies i.e. Ghani Global Glass 
Limited and Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, before recommending it for member’s approval. 
 
The following documents shall be available to the members of the company for inspection in the AGM to be held 
on October 28, 2022. 
 

1. Recommendations of due diligence report of investing companies. 
2. Last three years annual reports of associated companies. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer

GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

ASSETS Note

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 5 70              70              

Long term investments 6 3,581,141   3,481,141   

3,581,211   3,481,211   

Current assets

Stock-in-trade 7 136,094      98,115        

Trade debts 8 40,195        8,158         

Advances and other receivables 9 11,807        8,084         

Trade deposits and prepayments 10 509            0

Sales tax refundable 14,100        21,775        

Advance income tax 3,969         7,460         

Cash and bank balances 11 3,469         151,663      

210,143      295,255      

Total Assets 3,791,354   3,776,466   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorised capital

400,000,000 (2021: 300,000,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 12 4,000,000   3,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 13 3,219,270   2,799,365   

Capital reserve - share premium 14 0 267,649      

Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 551,431      693,211      

LIABILITIES 3,770,701   3,760,225   

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 15 6,195         8,691         

Book overdraft 16 9,742         0

Unclaimed dividend 844            844            

Taxation 17 3,872         6,706         

Total liabilities 20,653        16,241        

Contingencies and commitments 18

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,791,354   3,776,466   

Rupees in thousand

The annexed notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director Chief Financial Officer

Asim Mahmud

GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

2022 2021

Note

Gross sales 107,743  8,158 

Less: sales tax (15,905)   (1,185) 

Net sales 91,838    6,973      

Direct cost (70,930)   (6,366)     

Gross profit 20,908    607

Administrative expenses 19 (11,616)   (33,136)   

Other  expenses 20 (2,042)     (3,117)     

Other income 21 7,563      10,607    

(6,095)     (25,646)   

Profit / (loss) before taxation 14,813    (25,039)   

Taxation 17 (4,337)     (6,706)     

Profit / (loss) after taxation 10,476    (31,745)   

Other comprehensive income 0 0

Total comprehensive income / (loss) 10,476    (31,745)   

Restated

Earnings / (loss) per share 22 0.033      (0.118)     

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Rupees in thousand

----- Rupee ----

The annexed notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

51Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer Director

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer

GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Balance as at June 30, 2020 1,533,059 522,137 724,956 2,780,152

Bonus shares issued during the year 254,488 (254,488) 0 0

Proceeds from right shares issued

  during the year 1,011,818 0 0 1,011,818

Total comprehensive loss for the

year ended June 30, 2021 0 0 (31,745) (31,745)

Balance as at June 30, 2021 2,799,365 267,649 693,211 3,760,225

Bonus shares issued during the year 419,905 (267,649) (152,256) 0

Total comprehensive income for the

year ended June 30, 2022 0 0 10,476 10,476

Balance as at June 30, 2022 3,219,270 0 551,431 3,770,701

Share

capital

Capital 

reserve - 

Share 

premium

Revenue 

reserve - 

Unappr-

opriated

profit

Total

------------------- Rupees in thousand ------------

The annexed notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer

GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (loss)  for the year -  before taxation 14,813       (25,039)      

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stock-in-trade (37,979)      (98,115)      

Trade debts (32,037)      (8,158)        

Advances and other receivables (3,723)        (6,764)        

Trade deposits and prepayments (509)          0

Sales tax refundable 7,675         (21,658)      

Increase  in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables (2,496)        6,865         

Book overdraft 9,742         0

(59,327)      (127,830)    

Cash used in operations (44,514)      (152,869)    

Income tax paid (3,680)        (7,460)        

Net cash used in operating activities (48,194)      (160,329)    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Long term investments made (100,000)    (701,874)    

(148,194)    (862,203)    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of right shares 0 1,011,818  

Net (decrease) / increase  in cash and cash equivalents (148,194)    149,615     

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 151,663     2,048         

Cash and cash equivalents at  end of the year 3,469         151,663     

Rupees in thousand

The annexed notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

2.2 Accounting convention

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

During the financial year ended June 30, 2020, under a Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangement and Reconstruction as sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on
February 06, 2019, the Company transferred its manufacturing undertaking to Ghani
Chemical Industries Ltd. (Subsidiary Company) on July 08, 2019.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Ghani Gases (Private) Limited (GGL) was incorporated in Pakistan on November 19, 2007
as a company limited by shares under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and was converted
into a public company on February 12, 2008. GGL was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange
on January 05, 2010; GGL's name has been changed to Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. (the
Company) under the provisions of section 13 of the Companies Act, 2017 on August 28,
2019. The registered office of the Company is situated at 10-N Model Town Extension,
Lahore. The principal activity of the Company, subsequent to the separation of
manufacturing undertaking, is to manage investments in its Subsidiary and Associated
Companies and trading activities.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information has been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise
stated.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies
are as follows:

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
where otherwise specifically stated.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.
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- Provision for impairment of inventories.

- Allowance for expected credit loss.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

- Estimation of provisions.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities.

-

3.

3.1

3.2

4.

4.1 Intangible assets

Goodwill

4.2 Investments in subsidiaries

There are standards and certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards that
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company for the financial year
beginning on July 01, 2021. The standards and amendments are not expected to have any
material impact on the Company's unconsolidated financials reporting and, therefore, have
not been disclosed in these financial statements. 

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the unconsolidated
financials reporting of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Goodwill represents the difference between cost of the acquisition (fair value of
consideration paid) and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is
stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. As per the requirements of IAS 27
(Separate financial statements) in separate financial statements at subsequent reporting
dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Where
impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are
increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of
investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of

profit or loss.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective

in the current year

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

There are certain amendments and interpretations to published accounting and reporting
standards that are applicable for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2021 but do not
have any significant impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements and
therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO

EXISTING STANDARDS

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to
the Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the
following dates:

Current income tax expense and provision for current tax.

55Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



4.3 Stock-in-trade

4.4 Trade debts

4.5 Loans, advances and other receivables

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

4.7 Trade and other payables 

4.8 Taxation

4.9 Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

Classification

i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

iii) fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current
year includes adjustments where necessary relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed / finalised during the year. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of
financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company looses
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of
the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Finished goods purchased inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Trade debts are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Allowance is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts. Bad debts are written-off
when considered irrecoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position
at cost. For the purpose of unconsolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise of cash-in-hand and cash at banks, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Profit or loss of the subsidiaries is carried forward in respective financial statements and not
dealt within the unconsolidated financial statements except to the extent of dividend
declared by the subsidiary, which is recognised in other income. Gain and loss on disposal
of such investment is included in other income. When the disposal of investment in
subsidiary resulted in loss of control such that it becomes an associate, the retained
investment is carried at cost.

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The
Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets
excluding inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such
assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to the
recoverable amount and the difference is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the
Company.
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Recognition and derecognition

Measurement

Definition of default

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- 

Impairment of financial assets

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

- 

- 

Recognition of loss allowance

Write-off

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss or unconsolidated other comprehensive income (OCI).

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or 
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in impairment gains.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in unconsolidated statement of profit or 

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

The Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

The Company writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of
debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the
amount.
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(b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) fair value through profit or loss; and

ii) other financial liabilities.

Fair value through profit or loss

Other financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 

4.11 Revenue recognition

-

-

-

-

- miscellaneous income is recognised on receipt basis.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
unconsolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of

a promised service to a customer at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of

the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government

levies. The details are as follows:

dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is

established, i.e. on the date of book closure of the investee company declaring

the dividend;

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities
also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the

year in which these are disposed-off;

return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion using the effective rate
of return;

commission income on corporate guarantees is recognised on accrual basis as

per agreement terms; and
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4.12 Foreign currency transactions

4.13 Earnings per share 

4.14 Related party transactions

4.15 Provisions 

4.16 Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

-

-

4.17 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2022 2021

Note

Goodwill 5.1 70

                    

70

                    
5.1

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or

constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in
future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustment to the amount of previously recognised
provision is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss unless the provision
was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Transactions and contracts with related parties are based on the policy that all transactions
between the Company and related parties are carried-out at an arm’s length.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

Rupees in thousand

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition (fair value of the
consideration paid) and the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired at the time of
merger of Ghani Southern Gases (Pvt.) Ltd. with the Company.
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6. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - At Cost 2022 2021

Note

Subsidiary Companies 

Quoted

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. (GGGL)

120,235,680 (2021: 120,235,680) ordinary shares 

6.1 1,423,690        1,423,690        

Shareholding held: 50.10% (2021: 50.10%)

- Market value Rs.1,327.401 million

(2021: Rs.3,253.577 million)

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2022
Rs. 1,163.204 million (2021: Rs.1,064.085 million)

Unquoted

Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL)

251,459,985 (2021: 114,300,000) ordinary

   shares of Rs.10 each 6.2(a) 2,056,951        2,056,951        

Shareholding held: 69.90% (2021: 74.45%)

- Value of investments based on net assets

shown in the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2022

Rs. 3,812.519 million (2021: Rs.2,168.271 million)

Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd. (KLTL)

49,996 (2021:49,996) ordinary shares 6.3 500                  500                  

   of Rs.10 each

Shareholding held: 99.99% (2021: 99.99%)

- Value of investments based on net assets

shown in the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2022

Rs. nil (2021: Rs.0.401 million)

Associated Company

Quoted

G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH)
    (formerly Service Fabrics Ltd.)

10,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 6.4 100,000           0

- Market value Rs.84.600 million

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2022 Rs. 86.015 million

3,581,141        3,481,141        

Rupees in thousand

  of Rs.10 each

Shareholding held 4%
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6.1(a)

(b)

(c)

6.2(a)

(b)

6.3

6.4

6.5

GGGL was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 (then the Companies
Ordinance, 1984) as a private limited company on October 04, 2007 as Ghani Tableware
(Pvt.) Ltd. Its status was changed to public unlisted company, consequently its name was
changed to Ghani Tableware Ltd. as on July 24, 2008. Name of Ghani Tableware Ltd. was
further changed to Ghani Global Glass Ltd. on January 14, 2009. GGGL became listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange on December 12, 2014 upon merger of Libas Textiles Ltd. with
and into GGGL. GGGL is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of glass tubes,
glass-ware, vials, ampules and chemicals. GGGL commenced its commercial operations
with effect from April 01, 2016. GGGL's registered office is situated at 10-N, Model Town
Extension, Lahore and its manufacturing units are situated at 52-K.M. Lahore Multan Road,
Phool Nagar, District Kasur.

The name of SERF has been changed to G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) vide SECP's

certificate No.B048334 dated November 17, 2021. GTECH will be engaged in the business

of trading, production, marketing of various chemicals and investment in technology

company.

The Company's shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting held on September 05,
2020 have accorded their approval under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 for
aggregate investments upto Rs.950 million in GGGL out of which Rs.700 million will be
invested in the form of equity investment in any further increase in share capital of GGGL
and upto Rs.250 million in the form of equity investment through market purchase of shares. 

The Company has issued guarantees to the banks of GGGL in the shape of pledge of
50,098,200 ordinary shares of GGGL held by the Company for a maximum period of three
years.

GCIL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on November 23, 2015

under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and was

converted into a public limited company on April 20, 2017. GCIL is principally engaged in

manufacturing, sale and trading of medical & industrial gases and chemicals. The registered

office and head office of GCIL are situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore whereas

production facilities are situated at Phool Nagar, District Kasur and Industrial Zone, Port

Qasim, Karachi. GCIL's liaison office is situated in Sangjani, District Rawalpindi.

As per the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction, as sanctioned by

the Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Holding Company had transferred

its manufacturing undertaking to GCIL on July 08, 2019 after the effective date.

KLTL was incorporated in Pakistan as a company limited by shares on March 22, 2021
under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal activity of KLTL will be to manufacture,
produce, acquire, convert, distribute, buy, sell, import, export or otherwise deal in all types of
super capacitors, long term energy solutions for electric vehicles, Solar and UPS Battery
solutions.

GCIL, during the current financial year, has made bonus issue at the rate of 120%;

accordingly, the Company has received 137,159,985 bonus shares.

The Company's shareholders, in their extra ordinary general meeting held on August 28,
2021 through a special resolution, have accorded their approval in terms of section 199 of
the Companies Act, 2017 for aggregate investment upto Rs.250 million in Service Fabrics
Ltd (SERF - an Associated Company). The investment is in the form of equity investment in
the share capital of SERF. The Company, during the year, has made investment of Rs.100
million under this head.

The Company has assessed and evaluated the recoverable amounts of investments in the
Subsidiary Companies and an Associated Company at the reporting date. Based on these
assessments, no material adjustment is required to the carrying values stated in these
unconsolidated financial statements.
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7. STOCK-IN-TRADE Note 2022 2021

Finished goods - batteries, transformers & UPS 115,204           98,115             

Stock-in-transit 20,890             0                      

136,094           98,115             

8. TRADE DEBTS- Considered good

Unsecured - local

Balance as at June 30, 8.1 40,195             8,158               

8.1

8.2

8.3

9. ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers - considered good 844 800                  

Advance customs duty 10,963             63                    

Letters of credit margins 0 7,221               

             11,807                8,084 

10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits                   420 0

Prepaid insurance                     89 0

                  509 0

11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand 50                    0

Cash at banks on:

  - current accounts 912                  1,808               

  - saving accounts 11.1 2,507               149,855           

3,469               151,663           

11.1

12. AUTHORISED CAPITAL

Maximum amount due from GCIL at the end of any month during the year

was Rs. 32,465 thousand (2021: Rs. nil).

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 2.75% to 7.5% (2021: 3.75% to 7.25%) per
annum.

The Company, during the year, has increased its authorised capital from Rs.3,000,000,000
divided into 300,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each to Rs.4,000,000,000 divided into
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each. This increase has been made to cater for future
increase in paid-up share capital.

No amount was past due at the reporting date.

Rupees in thousand

Year-end balance includes due from Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL- a Subsidiary

Company) amounting Rs.32,465 thousand (2021: Rs. nil).
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13. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4(a)

(b)

2022 2021

14. SHARE PREMIUM Note

Opening balance 267,649           522,137           

15% (2021: 10%) Bonus shares issued 

    during the year 13.4 267,649           254,488           

0 267,649           

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on December 26, 2020 has
approved issuance of 10% bonus shares by capitalising Rs.254,487 thousand out of share
premium account. Shares were allotted during the preceding financial year.

The Company, during the year by capitalising out of capital (share premium) and revenue
reserves, has allotted 41,990,465 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each as fully paid bonus shares
in the proportion of fifteen (15) ordinary shares for every hundred (100) ordinary shares held
by the members of the Company at the closure of the business on October 14, 2021. This
bonus issue rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the 

Rupees in thousand

The Company, during the preceding financial year, made a right issue of shares which was

approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 27, 2020 at the rate of

Rs.10 per share in the ratio of 66 right shares for every 100 ordinary shares held. The total

size of the issue was Rs.1,011,818 thousand and the shares were issued during the

preceding financial year. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of the

Company in all aspects.

These shares were issued during the process of amalgamation of Ghani Southern Gases

(Pvt.) Ltd. with and into the Company as on May 15, 2012.

These shares were issued, during the financial year ended June 30, 2020, to the sponsor
shareholders of Ghani Global Glass Ltd. under the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement
and Reconstruction amongst the shareholders of Ghani Gases Ltd., Ghani Global Glass Ltd.
and Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd.

2022 2021 2022 2021

- - - -   Number - - - - 

224,138,555  224,138,555   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 
each fully paid in cash (note 13.1) 2,241,386          2,241,386  

13,000           13,000           

130                    130            

14,424,253    14,424,253     

144,243             144,243     

83,351,092    41,360,627     

833,512             413,606     

321,926,900  279,936,435   3,219,270          2,799,365  

 --- Rupees in thousand ---

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued

for consideration other than cash under

the Scheme of Arrangement for

Amalgamation (note 13.2)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued
for consideration other than cash under
the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangement and Reconstruction (note
13.3)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares
(note 13.4)
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14.1

14.2

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2022 2021

Trade creditors                4,762                2,559 

Accrued liabilities                   952                2,051 

Withholding tax payable                   152                     54 

Advances from customers - contract liabilities                   329                4,027 

               6,195                8,691 

16. BOOK OVERDRAFT

17. TAXATION - Net

Opening balance                6,706 0

Add: provision made during the year:

current                3,872                6,706 

prior year                   465 0

               4,337                6,706 

Less: adjustment made against
completed assessment                7,171 0

               3,872                6,706 

17.1

18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies

18.2 Commitments

18.3

The Company has provided corporate guarantees aggregating Rs.1,048,900 thousand

(2021: Rs.1,194,900 thousand) to the banks against finance facilities availed by its

Subsidiary Companies.

Share premium may be utilised by the Company only for the purposes specified in section
81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

This included balance amount of share premium received by the Company on 2,500,000
ordinary shares at the rate of Rs.5 per share, share premium on 7,000,000 ordinary shares
issued at Rs.2.50 each, share premium on 43,019,834 ordinary shares at the rate of Rs.10
each and share premium of Rs.128.073 million on issue of 14,424,253 shares to the
sponsors of Ghani Global Glass Ltd. under the Scheme.

No commitments were outstanding as at June 30, 2022; (2021 : commitments against
irrevocable letters of credit for import of finished good stocks aggregated  Rs.32.927 

This book overdraft has arisen due to issuance cheques for amounts in excess of balance in

a bank account.

Rupees in thousand

Provision for the current year represents tax payable under section 148 (Minimum tax on
imports) of the Income Tax  Ordinance, 2001.

Facilities available for opening letters of credit aggregate Rs.250 million, which remained
unutilised at the year-end.
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19. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 2022 2021

Salaries and other benefits 1,392               0

Printing and stationary                   441                   725 

Fees and subscription                7,912              22,721 

Entertainment 0                     37 

Travelling and conveyance                     52                     22 

Postage                   137                   337 

Professional tax                   100 0

Advertisement                   504                1,363 

Repair and maintenance                       6                       9 

Underwriting commission                   117                7,449 

Insurance                     31 0

Others                   924                   473 

             11,616              33,136 

20. OTHER  EXPENSES

Legal and professional (other than Auditors)                   813                2,003 

Auditors' remuneration:

- statutory audit                   704                   600 

- half yearly review and other certifications                   241                   225 

- fee for consolidated financial statements 184 150

               1,129                   975 

Others 100                   139 

               2,042                3,117 

21. OTHER INCOME

Profit on bank saving accounts                3,273                5,025 

Commission on corporate guarantees                4,119                5,582 

Payable balance written-back                   171 0

               7,563              10,607 

22. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on earnings / (loss) 
per share of the Company, which is based on:

Profit / (loss) after taxation attributable to 

     ordinary shareholders 10,476             (31,745)            

Restated

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 321,926,900    269,972,552    

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic 0.033               (0.118)              

(Number of shares)

---------- Rupee ----------

Rupees in thousand
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23. RELATED PARTIES

23.1

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. - 50.10% shares held by the Company.

Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. - 69.90% (2021: 74.45%) shares held by the Company.

Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd. - 99.99% shares held by the Company. 

23.2 2022 2021

Investments made: in 

  - G3 Technologies Ltd. 100,000           0

0 500

  - Ghani Global Glass Ltd. 0            701,374 

Guarantees' commission 4,120               5,582               

Sales              54,926 0

Mark-up paid 387 0

23.3

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets 2022 2021

At amortised cost

Trade debts 40,195 8,158

Security deposits 420 0

Bank balances 3,419 151,663

44,034 159,821

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

Trade and other payables 5,866 4,610

Book overdraft 9,742 0

Unclaimed dividend 844 844

16,452 5,454

Financial Risk Factors

Related parties comprise of Subsidiary and Associated Companies, directors of the
Company, Companies in which directors also hold directorships and key management
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted)
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have
been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements, are detailed in note
23.2.

Rupees in thousand

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Company's financial performance.

Name of Subsidiary Companies

Transactions with Related Parties
Rupees in thousand

  - Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd.

Transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and conditions.
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Market risk

Currency risk

Profit rate risk

2022 2021

Fixed rate instruments

Cash at banks on
saving accounts 2,507 149,855

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Price risk

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Company's finance department evaluates financial
risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity, provided
by the board of directors.

2.75% to 7.5%

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Company.

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit
risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage exposure
to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into
account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where
considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. Credit risk on
bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to any
significant price risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks:
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to currency risk on
import of finished goods stock mainly denominated in U.S. $. The Company is not exposed
to foreign currency risk as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 as it has no foreign
currency financial instrument at the respective reporting dates. 

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market profit rates. At the reporting date, the profit rate
profile of the Company's profit bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2022

Effective rates 

per annum
Carrying amount

Rupees in thousand
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Exposure to credit risk

2022 2021

Trade debts 40,195 8,158

Bank balances 3,419 151,663

43,614 159,821

Rating Agency Short term 2022 2021

Faysal Bank Ltd. JCR - VIS A1+ AA                   912                1,808 

Askari Bank Ltd. PACRA A1+ AA+                   262 11

Al-Baraka Bank  
(Pakistan) Ltd. JCR - VIS A-1 A+ 0              63,892 

Bank Alfalah Ltd. JCR - VIS A-1+ AA-                1,582 1

Habib Metropolitan

Bank Ltd. PACRA A1+ AA+                   477              82,726 

The Bank of 

Punjab PACRA A1+ AA+                     85                3,225 

JCR - VIS A-1+ AAA                   101 0

               3,419            151,663 

Liquidity risk

Bank name Long 

term Rupees in thousand

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies

maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of

adequate credit facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility

in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Habib Bank Ltd

Trade debts of the Company are not exposed to significant credit risk as the Company
trades with credit worthy customers.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high
credit ratings. Credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with
reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Trade debts are mainly due from local customers against sale of batteries, transformers and
UPS. Sales to the Company’s customers are made on specific terms and conditions.
Customers' credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and
controls relating to customers' credit risk management. Credit limits have been established
for all customers based on internal rating criteria. Credit quality of the customers is also
assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2022 along with comparative is
tabulated below:

Rupees in thousand

Credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and balances with banks. 
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25. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

26. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

27. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

28. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

No remuneration was paid to chief executive, directors and executives during the current
and preceding financial years. Further, no meeting fee was paid to directors for attending
the board meetings.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the
purposes of comparison; however, no significant re-classifications / re-statements have
been made to these unconsolidated financial statements.

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue in Board
of Directors meeting held on 04 October 2022.

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

The Company has 2 (2021: nil) permanent employees as at June 30, 2022.

Particulars
Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Less than

1 year

Year ended June 30, 2022

Trade and other payables          5,866              5,866                   5,866 

Bank overdraft          9,742              9,742                   9,742 

Unclaimed dividend             844                 844                      844 

16,452       16,452           16,452               

Year ended June 30, 2021

Trade and other payables 4,610         4,610             4,610                 

Unclaimed dividend 844            844                844                    

5,454         5,454             5,454                 

  --------------- Rupees in thousand --------------- 

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer

69Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



ANNUAL AUDITED 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



71Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



72Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



73Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



74Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



75Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer

GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

ASSETS Note

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 8,349,420      5,885,799      
Right of use assets 8 391,504         26,502           
Intangible assets 9 351,408         354,370         
Investments 10 101,306         0                    
Long term deposits 11 79,654           72,214           

9,273,292      6,338,885      
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 12 426,112         376,959         
Stock-in-trade 13 702,256         590,830         
Trade debts 14 1,204,439      972,258         
Loans and advances 15 326,129         177,844         
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 426,208         189,539         
Tax refunds due from the Government 173,555         171,940         
Advance income tax 17 568,656         559,155         
Cash and bank balances 18 553,377         382,273         

4,380,732      3,420,798      
Non-current assets held for sale 19 253,687

         
0

                    
Total assets 13,907,711

    
9,759,683

      
Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital

400,000,000 (2021: 300,000,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 20 4,000,000

      
3,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 21 3,219,270
      

2,799,365
      

Share premium 22 0
                    

267,649
         

Loans from directors 23 0
                    

147,770
         

Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land 929,285
         

0
                    

Unappropriated profit 1,458,084
      

950,313
         Equity attributable to the equity 

  holders of the Holding Company 5,606,639
      

4,165,097
      Non-controlling interest 2,770,749

      
1,627,232

      Total equity 8,377,388
      

5,792,329
      

Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 24 1,243,430

      
883,704

         Redeemable capital - Sukuk 25 162,500
         

379,167
         Long term security deposits 26 44,666

           
52,422

           Lease liabilities 27 5,739
             

5,261
             Deferred liabilities 28 456,314

         
333,575

         1,912,649
      

1,654,129
      Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 29 853,361
         

517,061
         Unclaimed dividend 844

                
844

                Accrued profit 30 111,761
         

47,857
           Short term borrowings 31 1,908,306

      
958,009

         Current portion of non-current liabilities 32 511,152
         

618,487
         Taxation 232,250

         
170,967

         3,617,674

      
2,313,225

      Total liabilities 5,530,323

      

3,967,354

      Contingencies and commitments 33

Total equity and liabilities 13,907,711

    

9,759,683

      

Rupees in thousand

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 
CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note

Sales 34 6,504,668 5,955,603

Less: sales tax 34 (882,242) (761,141)        

Sales - net 5,622,426 5,194,462

Cost of sales 35 (3,434,875) (3,112,522)     

Gross profit 2,187,551 2,081,940

Distribution cost 36 (325,063) (337,379)        

Administrative expenses 37 (269,450) (301,985)        

Other expenses 38 (116,346) (99,594)          

Other income 39 216,281 61,900           

(494,578) (677,058)        

Profit from operations 1,692,973 1,404,882

Finance cost 40 (299,182) (307,219)        

1,393,791 1,097,663

Share of profit of an Associated Company 10 4,150 0

Profit before taxation 1,397,941 1,097,663

Taxation 41 (394,607) (305,237)        

Profit after taxation 1,003,334 792,426

Attributable to:

- Equity holders of the Holding Company 660,027 549,410

- Non-controlling interest 343,307 243,016

1,003,334 792,426

Restated

Combined earnings per share 42 2.05 2.04

Rupees in thousand

------- Rupees -------

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note

Profit after taxation 1,003,334 792,426 

Other comprehensive income

Surplus arisen upon revaluation of freehold land 6.2 955,997 0

Surplus arisen upon revaluation of leasehold land 8.1 373,498 0

1,329,495 0

Total comprehensive income 2,332,829 792,426

Attributable to:

- Equity holders of the Holding Company 1,589,312 549,410

- Non-controlling interest 743,517 243,016

2,332,829 792,426

Rupees in thousand

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Balance as at June 30, 2020 1,533,059 522,137 0 1,044,141 400,903 3,500,240 300,366 3,800,606

Transactions with owners:

   Changes in directors' loans - net 0 0 0 (896,371)  0 (896,371)      0 (896,371)  

Bonus shares issued 254,488 (254,488)  0                    0 0 0 0 0

Proceeds from right shares issue 1,011,818 0 0 0 0 1,011,818 0 1,011,818

Non controlling interest in right issues

      made by Subsidiary Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,083,850 1,083,850

Income attributable to 

  non-controlling interest 0 0 0                    0 0 0 243,016 243,016

Income attributable to equity

  holders of the Holding Company 0 0 0                    0 549,410 549,410 0 549,410

Balance as at June 30, 2021 2,799,365 267,649 0 147,770 950,313 4,165,097 1,627,232 5,792,329

Transactions with owners:

   Changes in directors' loans - net 0 0 0 (147,770) 0 (147,770) 0 (147,770)

Bonus shares issued 419,905 (267,649) 0 0 (152,256) 0 0 0

Effect of 10 million ordinary shares of  

   Rs. 10 each including premium of 

   Rs. 30 per share issued by 

   Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. 0 0 0 0 0 0 400,000 400,000

Income attributable to 

  non-controlling interest 0 0 (400,210) 0 0 (400,210) 400,210 0

Income attributable to equity

  holders of the Holding Company 0 0 1,329,495 0 660,027 1,989,522 343,307 2,332,829

Balance as at June 30, 2022 3,219,270 0 929,285 0 1,458,084 5,606,639 2,770,749 8,377,388

------Attributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company -----

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Total

Non -

Controlling 

Interest

------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ------------------------------------------------

Loans 

from 

directors

Share

capital
Total

Revenue 

reserve  -  

unappr-

opriated 

profit

Capital reserve 

Share 

premium

Revaluation 

surplus on 

freehold and 

leasehold 

land

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit  for the year - before taxation 1,397,941    1,097,663    

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Finance cost 299,182       307,219       

Depreciation 220,720       219,497       

Amortisation of right-of-use assets 8,779           665              

Amortisation of intangible assets 2,962           2,961           

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (134,455)      (24,369)        

Exchange fluctuation loss - net (2,558)          515              

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess - amortised 1,480           (3,540)          

Credit balances written back (28,273)        0                  

Share of profit of an Associated Company (4,150)          0                  

Debit balances written off 0                  1,505           

Allowance for expected credit loss - net (11,465)
        

12,654
         

Amortisation of deferred income (1,738)
          

(5,708)
          

Profit before working capital changes 1,748,425
    

1,609,062
    

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

Increase in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools (49,153)
        

(170,689)
      

Stock-in-trade (111,426)
      

(259,103)
      

Trade debts (232,181)
      

(235,263)
      

Loans and advances (148,285)
      

(62,273)
        

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (236,669)
      

(104,794)
      

Tax refunds due from the Government (1,615)
          

(30,067)
        

Increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables 379,318
       

25,617
         

(400,011)
      

(836,572)
      

Cash generated from operations 1,348,414
    

772,490
       

Income tax paid - net (216,130)
      

(148,178)
      

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,132,284
    

624,312
       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (1,931,488)
   

(684,934)
      

Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 285,349
       

36,527
         

Long term investment - made (501,637)
      

0
                  

Long term investment - sold 200,200
       

0
                  

Long term deposits (7,440)
          

(3,274)
          

Net cash used in investing activities (1,955,016)
   

(651,681)
      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of right shares 400,000

       

2,095,668

    

Loans from directors - net (147,770)

      

(896,371)

      

Long term finances 250,532

       

281,187

       

Redeemable capital - Sukuk (redeemed) (216,667)

      

(54,166)

        

Lease finances 478

              

2,807

           

Long term security deposits - net (7,756)

          

9,450

           

Short term borrowings 950,297

       

(828,142)

      

Finance cost paid (235,278)

      

(352,973)

      

Net cash generated from financing activities 993,836

       

257,460

       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 171,104

       

230,091

       

Cash and cash equivalents at  beginning of the year 382,273

       

152,182

       

Cash and cash equivalents at  end of the year 553,377

       

382,273

       

(Rupees in thousand)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. (GGHL - the Holding Company)

Legal status and operations

1.2 Subsidiary Companies 

(a) Ghani Global Glass Ltd. (GGGL)

(b) Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL)

Ghani Gases (Private) Ltd. (GGL) was incorporated in Pakistan on November 19, 2007 as a

company limited by shares under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and was converted into a

public company on February 12, 2008. GGL was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on

January 05, 2010; GGL's name has been changed to Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. (GGHL).

under the provisions of section 13 of the Companies Act, 2017 on August 28, 2019. The

registered office of GGHL is situated at 10-N Model Town Extension, Lahore. The principal

activity of the Holding Company, subsequent to the separation of manufacturing

undertaking, is to manage investments in its Subsidiary and Associated Companies and

trading activities.

GGGL is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of glass tubes, glass-ware, vials

and ampules and chemicals. The registered office of GGGL is situated at 10-N, Model Town

Extension, Lahore whereas manufacturing units are located at 52 -K.M. Lahore Multan

Road, Phool Nagar, District Kasur.

GGGL is a subsidiary of GGHL, which holds 120,235,680 (2021: 120,235,680) ordinary

shares of Rs.10 each representing 50.10% (2021: 50.10%) of total shares issued as at the

reporting date.

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. (GGGL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company

on October 04, 2007 as Ghani Tableware (Private) Ltd. under the repealed Companies

Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The status of the GGGL was changed to

public unlisted company and consequently, its name was changed to Ghani Tableware Ltd.

on July 24, 2008. Name of the Company was further changed to Ghani Global Glass Ltd. on

January 14, 2009. GGGL was merged into Libaas Textiles Ltd., a listed company and

GGGL became listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on December 12, 2014 upon merger.

GGGL commenced its commercial operations with effect from April 01, 2016.

During the financial year ended June 30, 2020, under a Scheme of Compromises,

Arrangement and Reconstruction as sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on

February 06, 2019, the Holding Company transferred its manufacturing undertaking to
Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (Subsidiary Company) on July 08, 2019.

Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited

company on November 23, 2015 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the

Companies Act, 2017) and was converted into a public limited company on April 20, 2017.

GCIL is principally engaged in manufacturing, sale and trading of medical & industrial gases

and chemicals. The registered office and head office of GCIL are situated at 10-N, Model

Town Extension, Lahore whereas production facilities are situated at Phool Nagar, District

Kasur and Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. GCIL’s liaison office is situated in Sangjani,

District Rawalpindi.
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(c) Kilowatt Labs Technologies Ltd. (KLTL)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance

-

-

-

As per the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme), as
sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, GGHL had transferred

its manufacturing undertaking to GCIL on July 08, 2019 after the effective date.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

KLTL was incorporated on March 22, 2021 as a public limited company under the

Companies Act, 2017. The principal activity of KLTL is to manufacture, produce, acquire,
convert, distribute, buy, sell, import, export or otherwise deal in all types of super capacitors,

long term energy solutions for electric vehicles, Solar and UPS Battery solutions. KLTL is in
setup phase and has yet to commence commercial operations.

The management has signed a strategic Memorandum of Understanding with M/s Kilowatt
Labs Inc. New York, USA for setting up a manufacturing facility and the sale of long-life
super capacitor battery storage units for meeting the emerging demand of extended life and
efficient energy storage solutions to be used for telecom, locomotives, industrial equipment,
green technology energy harvesting, electric vehicles, solar & UPS solutions and micro grid

etc., purposes in Pakistan and for exporting the same to other countries.

The management has further decided to sign a strategic Memorandum of Understanding

with G3 Technologies Ltd. for joint investment in KLTL.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Presently, the joint venture agreement with M/s Kilowatt Labs Inc. New York, USA is in the
process for setting up of the project. The management has made arrangements for import

and sale of finished units in Pakistan from one of Kilowatt Labs Inc.'s manufacturing
facilities in UAE.  

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been

followed.

KLTL is a wholly owned Subsidiary of GGHL, which holds 49,996 ordinary shares of KLTL

as at June 30, 2022.

The registered office of KLTL is situated at 10-N Model Town Extension, Lahore.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

GCIL is a Subsidiary of GGHL, which holds 251,459,985 (2021:114,300,000) ordinary

shares of GCIL representing 69.90% ( 2021: 74.45%) of its paid-up capital as at June 30,

2022.

The Board of Directors (the Board) of G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) in their meeting held
on April 14, 2022 has decided to merge GTECH with and into Ghani Chemical Industries
Ltd. (an Associated Company). The Board has also decided to file a petition before the
Lahore High Court, Lahore for sanctioning the Scheme of Merger after completion of all
related formalities. The Board has also decided to hold Extraordinary General Meeting of
GTECH on May 07, 2022 for approval of disinvestment of 22,000,000 ordinary shares of
Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd.

82Ghani Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



2.2 Accounting convention

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

-

- Provision for impairment of inventories.

- Allowance for expected credit loss.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

- Estimation of provisions.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities.

-

3. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

2022 2021

% %

50.10 50.10

69.90 74.45

99.99 99.99

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding
Company, financial statements of GGGL, the consolidated financial statements of GCIL and
the financial statements of KLTL as at and for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Holding
Company's direct interest in Subsidiary Companies as at June 30, 2022 was as follows: 

-KLTL

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax
asset (for carried forward tax losses).

- GGGL

- GCIL

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and
future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency.
All financial information has been rounded-off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless
otherwise stated.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to

estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group’s financial
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as
follows:

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment.
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1

Non-controlling interest is calculated on the basis of their proportionate share in the net
assets of the Subsidiary Companies.

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Holding Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one

half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently

exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Holding Company
controls another entity. The Holding Company also assesses existence of control where it

does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances
where the size of the Holding Company’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of other shareholders give the Holding Company the power to govern the financial

and operating policies, etc.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO

EXISTING STANDARDS

There are certain amendments and interpretations to published accounting and reporting
standards that are applicable for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2021 but do not

have any significant impact on the Group's financial reporting and therefore, have not been
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to

the Group’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the
following dates:

There are standards and certain amendments to accounting and reporting standards that

are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group for the financial year

beginning on July 01, 2021. The standards and amendments are not expected to have any

material impact on the Group's financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in

these consolidated financial statements. 

All significant inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions

between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company
transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective

during the current year

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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5.2 Property, plant and equipment

(a)  GGGL

Measurement

 - Building 10%

 - Plant and machinery

 - Furnace 5% & 33.33%

 - Furniture and fixtures 10%

 - Office equipment 10%

 - Computers 30%

 - Vehicles 15%

GGGL assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant

and equipment is impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets

are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.

Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognised in

statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less

cost to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation

charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its

depreciation rate.

Impairment

The choice of depreciation method and estimates regarding residual value and depreciation

rates of assets are reviewed at least at each reporting date and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant.

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

identified impairment loss, if any, except freehold land which is stated at cost. Cost of

property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the

construction and erection period and directly attributable costs of bringing assets to working

condition.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost (other than land) using the reducing

balance method, except for certain plant and machinery on which depreciation is charged

on production hour basis and furnace on which depreciation is charged on straight line

basis, at rates specified below from month of addition to month of disposal:

Machine hours  & 5%

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use

or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of an item of property, plant and

equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying

amounts of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Disposal
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(b)  GCIL

Owned

Measurement

Revaluation

Depreciation

De-recognition

Judgment and estimates

Right of use assets and related liabilities

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to GCIL and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in
which the asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged for the month in

which the asset is disposed-off.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or
retirement of an asset is represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as an income or expense.

At the inception of a contract, GCIL assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The extension and

termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when GCIL is
reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if
expectations differ from previous estimates the change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold and leasehold land are
recognised, in statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining

surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold and leasehold land are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold and
leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts.
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Capital work-in-progress

5.3 Intangible assets 

(a) The Holding Company 

Goodwill

(b) GCIL

Software

Software is amortised using straight line method at the rate given in note 9 to these
consolidated financial statements. Amortisation is charged to consolidated statement of

profit or loss from the month in which the asset is available for use. Amortisation on
additions is charged on pro-rata basis from the month in which asset is put to use, while for
disposals, amortisation is charged upto the month of disposal.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future

economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure are

charged to income as and when incurred. Gain or loss arising on disposal and retirement of
intangible asset is determined as a difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as income or expense in consolidated
statement of profit or loss immediately.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less any

identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during
installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. Transfers are
made to respective property, plant and equipment category as and when assets are
available for use.

Goodwill represents the difference between cost of the acquisition (fair value of

consideration paid) and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is
stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at
which the leased assets are available for use by GCIL.

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on item of property, plant and equipment,
which are in the course of construction, erection or installation. 

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, GCIL’s incremental borrowing rate.

Generally, GCIL uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. At initial

recognition, liabilities have been discounted using GCIL’s incremental borrowing rate of
8.50% ( 2021: 8.85%). Lease payment includes fixed payments with annual increments.
The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial

direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line method over
the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by
impairment losses, if any.

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment loss.

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also
be measured reliably.
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5.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

(a) GGGL 

(b) GCIL

5.5 Stock-in-trade

(a) The Holding Company

(b) GGGL and GCIL

- Raw and packing materials At weighted average cost.

- Work-in-process At weighted average manufacturing cost.

- Finished goods At weighted average manufacturing cost.

- Items in transit

5.6 Trade debts and other receivables

5.7 Loans, advances, prepayments and trade deposits 

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realisable value; whilst the items
considered obsolete are written off. Cost of items in transit comprises invoice value plus

incidental charges paid thereon.

Cost comprise invoice values plus other charges

incurred thereon.

These are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value, plus
other charges paid thereon. Provision is also made for slow moving and obsolete items.

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-
in-hand and cash at banks, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Finished goods purchased inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business

less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost. Allowance is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts.
Bad debts are written-off when considered irrecoverable.

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The
Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets excluding
inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets
are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.
Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to the

recoverable amount and the difference is charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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5.9 Trade and other payables 

5.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

5.11 Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Classification

i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

iii) fair value through other comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case

of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial

assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group looses

control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are

derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified

in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of

the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Group.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial

assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date

on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets are

derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired

or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred

except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised

as part of the cost of that asset.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
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Definition of default

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- 

Impairment of financial assets

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

- 

- 

Recognition of loss allowance

Write-off

b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) fair value through profit or loss; and

ii) other financial liabilities.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk

management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

The Group assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The

measurement of ECL reflects:

information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range

of possible outcomes;

reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical
recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The

assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s
sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in impairment gains.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial liabilities 

also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
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i) Fair value through profit or loss

ii) Other financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.12 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

5.13 Revenue recognition

(a) The Holding Company

-

-

-

-

- miscellaneous income is recognised on receipt basis.

return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion using the effective rate of

return;

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Group’s obligations are

discharged, cancelled or expired.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are

recognised in statement of profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value

through profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability upon recognition
as being at fair value through profit or loss.

gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year in

which these are disposed-off;

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the

recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

commission income on corporate guarantees is recognised on accrual basis as per
agreement terms; and

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control

of a promised service to a customer at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government

levies. The details are as follows:

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and

compared with its carrying amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised. The Group recognises the reversal immediately in
the statement of profit or loss.

dividend income is recognised when the Holding Company's right to receive dividend is

established, i.e. on the date of book closure of the investee company declaring the

dividend;
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(b) GGGL

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(c) GCIL

-

-

-

-

Contract assets

Revenue is recognised when performance obligation is satisfied by applying following five

steps of revenue recognition:

Identify the contract with a customer

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that GGGL expects to be

entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to a customer. Revenue is measured at the

fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised when:

Dividend income is recognised when the GCIL's right to receive dividend is established,

i.e. on the date of books closure of the investee company declaring the dividend.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue

is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to GCIL and

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of goods or rendering of services is recognised when performance

obligations are satisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the time when deliveries are made

or services are rendered) of a promised good or service to a customer, and control either

transfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of

services is measured net of sales tax, returns and trade discounts.

Return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion using the effective rate of

return.

Gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year in
which these are disposed-off.

Revenue from local sale of goods is recognised when or as performance obligations are

satisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the time of transfer of physical possession) of a

promised good to a customer. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Contract assets arise when GCIL performs its performance obligations by transferring
goods and services to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before

payment is due.

Revenue from export sales is recognised when the invoice is raised and the transfer of

control of goods, which coincides either with the date of bill of lading or upon delivery to

customer or its representative, as per terms of arrangement. 

Determine the transaction price of the contract

Identify the performance obligation in the contract

Recognise the revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the
contract
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Contract liabilities

5.14 Foreign currency transactions

5.15 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

(a) Current

(b) Deferred

5.16 Earnings per share 

5.17 Related party transactions

5.18 Provisions 

Income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, if any, in which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in consolidated other

comprehensive income or equity.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Transactions and contracts with related parties are based on the policy that all transactions

between the Group and related parties are carried-out at an arm’s length.

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Contract liability is the obligation of GCIL to transfer goods and services to a customer for

which GCIL has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before GCIL transfers goods and services, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when GCIL performs its

performance obligations under the contract.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.

Exchange gains and losses are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current

year also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed / finalised during the  year. 

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts appearing in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liability is

recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that temporary differences

will reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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5.19 Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group

-

-

5.20 Employees’ benefits

Defined contribution plan

Compensated absences

5.21 Segment reporting

(a) GGGL

(b) GCIL

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors of  GCIL that makes strategic decisions.

The Group operates funded employees’ provident fund schemes for its permanent eligible
employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.33% of gross pay are made both by
the Group and employees to the funds.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in

future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustment to the amount of previously recognised

provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss unless the provision
was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Compensated absences are accounted for employees of the Group on un-availed balances

of leave in the period in which the absences are earned.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Chief Executive Officer of GGGL). Segment
results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment
capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group; or

has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those

that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant & equipment, stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade. Segment liabilities
comprise of long term finances, lease liabilities, short term borrowings and trade & other
payables.

On the basis of its internal reporting structure, GCIL has two reportable segments i.e.

Industrial & Medical Gases and Industrial Chemicals.
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5.22 Balances from contract with customers

(a) GGGL

Contract assets

Trade receivables

Contract liabilities

Right of return assets

Refund liabilities

5.23 Deferred income - Government grant

5.24 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2022 2021

Note

Operating fixed assets 6.1 7,265,711

        

5,351,968

        

Capital work-in-progress 7 1,083,568

        

523,775

           

Advance against purchase of vehicles 141

                   

10,056

             

8,349,420

        

5,885,799

        

A contract asset is the right to receive in exchange for goods transferred to the customer

against which no invoice has been raised.

Dividend distribution to shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the

period in which these are approved.

Government grant is initially measured at fair value; after initial recognition, it is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Right of return assets represent GGGL’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned

by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less
any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of

the returned goods. GGGL updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any
revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of

the returned products.

Rupees in thousand

Trade receivables represent GGGL's right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less expected credit

loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off

when identified.

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount GGGL ultimately expects it

will have to return to the customer. GGGL updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which

GGGL has received consideration from the customer. A contract liability is recognised at

earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer pays consideration

before GGGL transfers goods or services to the customer.
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6.1 Operating fixed assets - tangible

As at June 30, 2020

Cost 140,597        118,770       445,712    5,204,051          402,202             44,841            10,650        13,265           133,049      6,513,137   

Accumulated depreciation 0                   0                  205,793    708,908             144,487             20,005            3,131          10,308           63,140        1,155,772   

Book value 140,597        118,770       239,919    4,495,143          257,715             24,836            7,519          2,957             69,909        5,357,365   

Year ended June 30, 2021

Additions 500               15,000         10,873      153,021             17,564               2,522              1,005          1,572             24,201        226,258      

Disposals:

- cost 0                   0                  0               10,138               0                        0                     0                 0                   5,137          15,275        

- accumulated depreciation 0                   0                  0               (476)                   0                        0                     0                 0                   (2,641)         (3,117)         

0                   0                  0               9,662                 0                        0                     0                 0                   2,496          12,158        

Depreciation charge 

for the year 0                   47                24,775      151,616             23,849               2,608              773             1,109             14,720        219,497      

Book value 141,097        133,723       226,017    4,486,886          251,430             24,750            7,751          3,420             76,894        5,351,968   
0                 

Year ended June 30, 2022

Additions 0                   0                  141,569    1,072,278          0                        4,299              4,931          1,888             156,645      1,381,610   

Revaluation adjustments 907,857        48,140         0               0                        0                        0                     0                 0                   0                 955,997      

Transfer adjustments 29,159          (29,159)        0               0                        0                        0                     0                 0                   0                 0                 

Leasehold land classified

    as held-for-sale 0                   (52,250)        0               0                        0                        0                     0                 0                   0                 (52,250)       

Disposals:

- cost 0                   36,750         0               114,490             0                        0                     0                 0                   53,290        204,530      

- accumulated depreciation 0                   0                  0               (32,494)              0                        0                     0                 0                   (21,142)       (53,636)       

0                   36,750         0               81,996               0                        0                     0                 0                   32,148        150,894      

Depreciation charge 

for the year 0                   0                  23,989      147,713             21,094               2,762              880             1,322             22,960        220,720      

Book value 1,078,113     63,704         343,597    5,329,455          230,336             26,287            11,802        3,986             178,431      7,265,711   

As at June 30, 2021

Cost 141,097        133,770       456,585    5,346,934          419,766             47,363            11,655        14,837           152,113      6,724,120   

Accumulated depreciation 0                   47                230,568    860,048             168,336             22,613            3,904          11,417           75,219        1,372,152   

Book value 141,097        133,723       226,017    4,486,886          251,430             24,750            7,751          3,420             76,894        5,351,968   

As at June 30, 2022

Cost 1,078,113     63,751         598,154    6,304,722          419,766             51,662            16,586        16,725           255,468      8,804,947   

Accumulated depreciation 0                   47                254,557    975,267             189,430             25,375            4,784          12,739           77,037        1,539,236   

Book value 1,078,113     63,704         343,597    5,329,455          230,336             26,287            11,802        3,986             178,431      7,265,711   

5% &

240,000         

Depreciation rate (% - per annum) 50-100 years 10% Machine hours 5% & 33.33% 10% 10% 30% 15% - 20%

Computers Vehicles Total

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -Rupees in thousand- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Freehold 

land

Leasehold 

land
Buildings

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture and 

fixtures

Office 

equipment
Furnace
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- 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur

- Mouza Parna, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur

- Plot No. 09 to 12, B2 , Zone -B, Hattar

- Sarai Kharbuza, Tarnol, Islamabad

Freehold land Leasehold land

Cost as at June 30, 2021             132,463              15,610 

Revalued amounts as at September 30, 2021 1,040,320

        

63,750

             

Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 907,857

           

48,140

             

(a)

(b)

6.3

6.4

Had there been no revaluations, book value of freehold and leasehold land would have

been Rs.132.463 million and Rs.15.610 million respectively as at June 30, 2022.

Based on the aforementioned revaluation reports, the forced sale values of the revalued

freehold and leasehold land have been assessed at Rs.883.256 million.

GCIL, during the year, has classified its leasehold land located at Hattar, Industrial Land,

Plot No. 7,8, 13 to 18, B3, as held-for-sale under IFRS - 5 (Non-current assets held-for-sale

and discontinued operations). Management intends to sell this land within the next twelve

months.

The revaluation exercises have been carried-out by independent Valuers [ Al-Hadi Financial

& Legal Consultants, LG-16, Eden Towers, Main Boulevard, Gulberg III, Lahore.]. Freehold

land has been revalued on the basis of present market values whereas leasehold land has

been revalued on the basis of estimated prevailing lease rate. These revaluations have

resulted in revaluation surplus aggregating Rs. 955.997 million as worked-out below:

Rupees in thousand

GCIL, during September, 2021, has carried-out revaluations of its freehold and leasehold

land situated at :

Particulars of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year having book value of Rs. 500,000 or more:

GCIL:

Leasehold land ( 6.25 Acres) 36,750      0                   36,750 125,000   88,250     
10-N, Model Town, Extension, Lahore.

Plant & machinery

Xl-65 Liquid portable cylinders 864           (71)                793 2,200       1,407       

111,856    (32,304)         79,552 85,000     5,448       

Others (having book 
value less than Rs. 500,000) 652           (38)                614 1,061       447          

GGGL:

Plant and machinery 1,118        (81)                1,037        1,538       501          

114,490    (32,494)         81,996      89,799     7,803       

GCIL:

Vehicles

Toyota Grande 2,452        (1,685)           767           3,000       2,233        Rashid Awan Goods Transport

Toyota Land Cruiser 14,995      (8,464)           6,531        30,000     23,469     Mr. Atique Ahmed Khan ( Director )

Honda Civic 6,505        0                   6,505        7,350       845          Malik Basharat

Toyota Camry 5,565        (3,141)           2,424        7,200       4,776       

Toyota Camry 11,727      (179)              11,548      17,500     5,952        Rashid Awan Goods Transport

GGGL:

Vehicles 12,046      (7,673)           4,373        5,500       1,127       Mr. Masroor Ahmed Khan, (CEO)

53,290      (21,142)         32,148      70,550     38,402     

Total                    2022 204,530    (53,636)         150,894    285,349   134,455   

        Total                    2021 15,275      (3,117)           12,158      36,527     24,369     

Deutz Gas Generators 2 Mw & 1.4 Mw 

and spare parts

Global Health Services Ltd.

Stameco Energy Services Pvt Ltd., Officers 
Officers Colony, Sheikhupura.

Chak Shahzad, Islamabad

NBA Glass, third party

Sold to various parties.

E-Finance Solution, 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - Sold through negotiation to:

G3 Technologies Ltd (an Associated Co.)

Gain Particulars of Purchaser Description  Cost 

 

Accumulated 

depreciation 

 Book 

value 

Sale 

proceeds
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6.5 Particulars of immovable properties in the name of GGGL and GCIL: 

6.6

6.7

2022 2021

Cost 200,802

           

162,395

           

Book value 156,334

           

127,912

           

6.8

Cost of sales 187,791

           

196,702

           

Administrative expenses 32,929

             

22,795

             

220,720

           

219,497

           

6.9

2022 2021

7. Capital work in progress - at cost Note

GGGL:

Furnace 7.1 926,089

           

313,550

           

Buildings 7.2 136,812

           

35,934

             

GCIL:

Civil works 7.4 0

                       

27,687

             

Plant and machinery 7.5 20,667

             

146,604

           

1,083,568

        

523,775

           

Depreciation charge for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

As at June 30, 2022, GCIL plant and machinery include vacuum insulated evaporator tanks

installed at various customers' sites for supply of gas products. These assets are secured
against deposits as disclosed in note 26. Cost and book value of these vacuum insulated

evaporator tanks were as follows:

GCIL leasehold land rights located at Hattar under KPEZDMC is still under provisional

allotment; therefore, at the reporting date, this has been carried as leasehold land.

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand

Certain financing by the banks are secured against first pari passu charge on certain

property, plant and equipment of GGGL .

Covered Area 

In sq. ft.

(a)   GGGL

- Pattoki, District Kasur Manufacturing facility (gases)Production plant -

(b)   GCIL

- 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur Manufacturing facility (gases) 67,031                

- Mouza Parna, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur Industrial land -

- Plot No. 09 to 12, B2, Zone -B, Hattar Industrial land -

- Sarai Kharbuza, Tarnol, Islamabad Industrial land -

34 Kanals (4.25 Acres)

7 Kanals

83 Kanals and 9 Marlas

113 Kanals 8 marlas and 90 feet

Location Usage of immovable property Total Area

108 Kanals 10 Marlas
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7.1 Furnace (GGGL) 2022 2021

Note

Opening balance             313,550 0

Additions during the year             612,539            313,550 

Closing balance             926,089            313,550 

(a)

(b)

7.2 Buildings (GGGL)

Opening balance               35,934              31,242 

Additions during the year             100,878                4,692 

Closing balance             136,812              35,934 

7.3 Civil works (GCIL)

Opening balance               27,687              27,687 

Additions during the year             112,481 0

Capitalised during the year (140,168)
          

0

Closing balance 0
                       

             27,687 

7.4 Plant and machinery (GCIL)

Opening balance 146,604
           

3,618
               

Additions during the year 7.5 921,482
           

269,139
           

Capitalised during the year 7.6 (1,047,419)

       

(126,153)

          

Closing balance 20,667

             

146,604

           

7.5

7.6

8. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Opening balance 31,689

             

29,083

             

Revaluation increment 8.1 373,498

           

0

                      

Revaluation adjustment-cost (5,187)

              

0

                      

Lease reassessment 283

                   

2,606

               

400,283

           

31,689

             

Amortisation

Opening balance (5,187)

              

(4,522)

              

5,187

                

0

                      

Amortised during the year 8.4 (8,779)

              

(665)

                 

(8,779)

              

(5,187)

              

Closing balance 391,504

           

26,502

             

This includes profit on ITERF of Rs.17.751 million (2021: Rs.3.087 million) capitalised

during the year.

During the year, borrowing cost at the rate of 5% per annum amounting Rs. 14.682 million (

2021: Rs. nil) has been included in the cost of plant and machinery by GCIL.

Rupees in thousand

Revaluation adjustment-accumulated   amortisation

These include expenditure aggregating Rs.663.361 million relating to installation of new

plant (Gaseous Air Separation Unit) capitalised during the year and Rs.20.667 million

relating to installation of new plant at Hattar, KPK

Subsequent to the year end on July 01, 2022, GGGL successfully commenced the

commercial production of glass tubing from this furnace which has a production capacity of

25 TPD (tons per day), and transferred to the operating fixed assets.
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8.1

Carrying value of leasehold land as at June 30, 2021 26,502
             

Revalued amount of leasehold land as at September 14, 2021 400,000
           

Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 373,498
           

8.2

8.3

8.4

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2022 2021

 Goodwill :

GGHL 9.1                      70                      70 

Goodwill originated 9.2             328,830            328,830 

Transfer upon acquisition of GGGL 9.3               19,794              19,794 

Software

GCIL 9.4                 2,714                5,676 

351,408

           

354,370

           

9.1

9.2

9.3

Amortisation charge for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by using straight

line method over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under

administrative expenses.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that

goodwill may be impaired. These tests require the use of estimates to calculate recoverable

amounts. The recoverable amounts of goodwill attributable to cash-generating units is

determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use financial budgets

and plans covering five-year periods unless a longer period can be justified. Key
assumptions used in the financial budgets and plans are revenue growth and margins.

Cash flows beyond these periods are extrapolated using rates of growth and profitability.

The management of the Holding Company has used applicable discount rates and these

discount rates are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks relating to the relevant cash-
generating unit.

Had there been no revaluation, book value of leasehold land would have been Rs.26.114

million as at June 30, 2022.

Based on the aforementioned revaluation report dated September 14, 2021, the forced sale

value of the revalued leasehold land has been assessed at Rs. 320 million.

GCIL, during September, 2021, has carried-out revaluation of leasehold land situated at Plot

No. A-53, Chemical Area, East Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40
Kanals having covered area of 17,045 sq. ft. The revaluation exercise has been carried out

by independent Valuers [ Al-Hadi Financial & Legal Consultants, LG-16, Eden Towers, Main

Boulevard, Gulberg III, Lahore.]. Leasehold land has been revalued on the basis of present
market rate of project land and it has resulted in revaluation surplus of Rs.373.498 million

as worked-out below:

Rupees in thousand

Rs. in thousand

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition (fair value of the

consideration paid) and the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired at the time of

merger of Ghani Southern Gases (Pvt.) Ltd. with the Holding Company.

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition (fair value of
consideration paid) and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired at the time of

merger of Libaas Textile Ltd. with and into GGGL.
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9.4 GCIL - Software 2022 2021

Cost

Balance at year-end 14,808             14,808             

Amortisation

Opening balance 9,132
                

6,171
               

Amortised during the year 2,962
                

2,961
               

12,094
             

9,132
               

Carrying value at year-end 2,714
                

5,676
               

9.5

10. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE COMPANY - Quoted

Holding Company

G3  Technologies Ltd. (GTECH)

10,000,000 ordinary shares 0f Rs. 10 each             100,000 0

Shareholding held 4%

- Market value Rs.84.600 million

- Value of investments based on net assets 

shown in the audited financial statements

for  the year ended June 30,2022 Rs.86.015 million

Share of profit for the year                 1,306 0

            101,306 0

GCIL

G3  Technologies Ltd.

39,800,000  ordinary shares purchased 

 during the year at the rate of Rs.10.02 each             398,793 0

Share of profit upto April 09, 2022                 2,844 0

Less: shares classified as held-for-sale

   as at April 09, 2022 (401,637)

          

0

0 0

            101,306 0

10.1.

10.2.

GGHL's shareholders, in their extra ordinary general meeting held on August 28, 2021

through a special resolution, have accorded their approval in terms of section 199 of the

Companies Act, 2017 for aggregate investment upto Rs.250 million in Service Fabrics Ltd.

(SERF - an Associated Company). The investment is in the form of equity investment in the

share capital of SERF. GGHL, during the year, has made investment of Rs.100 million

under this head.

Amortisation has been charged at the rate of 20% of cost and has been allocated to

administrative expenses. 

Rupees in thousand

The name of SERF has been changed to G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) vide SECP's

certificate No.B048334 dated November 17, 2021. GTECH will be engaged in the business

of trading, production, marketing of various chemicals and investment in technology

company.
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10.3.

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets            313,465 

Current assets         1,946,649 

        2,260,114 

Current liabilities            109,732 

Net assets         2,150,382 

Reconciliation to carrying amount

Opening net assets (234,327)

          

Profit for the year              43,546 

Right shares issued during the year         2,341,163 

Closing net assets         2,150,382 

GGHL's share percentage 4%

GGHL's share              86,015 

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

GCIL's shareholders, in their extra ordinary general meeting held on October 23, 2021

through a special resolution, have accorded their approval in terms of section 199 of the

Companies Act, 2017 for aggregate investment upto Rs. 400 million in Service Fabrics Ltd.

(now GTECH). The investment is in the form of equity investment in the share capital of

GTECH. GCIL, during the year, has made investment of Rs.398.793 million under this head.

The name of Service Fabrics Ltd. has been changed to G3 Technologies Ltd. (GTECH) vide

SECP's certificate No.B048334 dated November 17, 2021.

GCIL's shareholders, in their extra ordinary general meeting held on April 09, 2022 through

a special resolution, have authorised the directors in terms of section 199 of the Companies
Act, 2017 to disinvest 39.800 million shares of GTECH at appropriate price not less than

cost of investments.

Accordingly, these investments have been classified as held-for-sale as per the

requirements of IFRS 5 (Non-current assets held-for-sale). Application of equity method has
been discontinued with effect from April 09, 2022. Effective from April 09, 2022, held-for-
sale investments have been stated at lower of carrying value and fair value less cost to sell.

The summary of financial information of GTECH based on its audited financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Rs. in thousand

GGHL has assessed and evaluated the recoverable amounts of investments in the

Associated Company at the reporting date. Based on these assessments, no material
adjustment is required to the carrying value stated in these consolidated financial

statements.

G3 Technologies Ltd.(formerly Service Fabrics Ltd.) was incorporated in Pakistan on

December 01, 1987 as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). The shares of

G3 Technologies Ltd. are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. G3 Technologies Ltd.'s
registered office is situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore. 
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11. LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Considered good 2022 2021

Security deposits against: Note

- Utility bills 11.1 68,463             68,463             

- Rented premises 4,045                3,012               

- Ijarah finance facilities 6,993                586                  

- Others 153                   153                  

79,654
             72,214

             

11.1

12. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 76,498
             

60,929
             

Spare parts 348,454
           

315,081
           

Loose tools 1,160
                

949
                  

426,112
           

376,959
           

13. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials 192,181

           

121,508

           

Work in process 7,413

                

5,165

               

Finished goods 481,772

           

442,104

           

Stock in transit 20,890

             

22,053

             

702,256

           

590,830

           

14. TRADE DEBTS 

Considered good:

-  Local debtors - unsecured 1,210,525

        

976,906

           

-  Foreign debtors - secured 0

                       

1,971

               

1,210,525

        

978,877

           

Considered doubtful - GCIL 16,027

             

26,960

             

1,226,552

        

1,005,837

        

Allowance for expected credit loss 14.1 (22,113)

            

(33,579)

            

1,204,439

        

972,258

           

14.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance 33,578

             

20,925

             

Charge for the year 11,695

             

14,513

             

Written off during the year (23,160)

            

(1,859)

              

Closing balance 22,113

             

33,579

             

14.2

14.3 In case of GCIL, trade debts aggregating Rs.413.365 million ( 2021: Rs. 318.660 million)
were either past due or overdue but not impaired as allowance for expected credit loss.

These balances relate to various customers, primarily Government organisations, with
whom there was no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as
follows:

These deposits are being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date; therefore,
have been carried at cost, as amortised cost is impractical to determine.

In case of GCIL, trade debts include aggregate amount of Rs.89.460 million due from G-3

Technologies Ltd. (an Associated Company) against supplies of industrial gases. Maximum
amount due from Associated Company at the end of any month during the year was

Rs.89.460 million. 

Rupees in thousand
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2022 2021

Note

Up to 1 month 130,254           171,364           

31 to 60 days 44,242
             

34,891
             

61 to 90 days 32,119
             

31,102
             

91 to 180 days 75,379
             

22,346
             

181 to 365 days 43,337
             

26,447
             

Above 365 days 88,034
             

32,510
             

413,365

           

318,660

           

14.4

15. LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured, considered good 

Advances to:

  - employees against expenses 3,875

                

4,978

               

  - employees against salaries 145

                   

170

                  

  - suppliers and contractors 235,363

           

142,280

           

  - Collector of Customs 19,266

             

3,883

               

Advance against  imports 48,766

             

14,858

             

Due from related parties 15.3 5,155

                

1,480

               

Letters of credit 15,044

             

11,680

             

327,614

           

179,329

           

Allowance for impairment (1,485)

              

(1,485)

              

326,129

           

177,844

           

15.1 Due from related parties

Ghani Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. 806

                   

680

Ghani Products (Pvt.) Ltd. 3,288

                

243

Ghani Global Foods Ltd. 424

                   

350

Air Ghani (Pvt.) Ltd. 237

                   

207

G3 Technologies Ltd. 400

                   

0

5,155

                

1,480

               

15.2

15.3

16. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade deposits 142,795

           

86,619

             

Prepayments 8,740

                

9,002

               

Bank guarantee margins 4,364

                

10,771

             

Letters of credit margins 270,250

           

83,036

             

Bank profit receivable 59

                     

111

                  

426,208

           

189,539

           

In case of GCIL, receivables from the government institutions aggregate Rs.413.365 million
as at June 30, 2022 ( 2021: Rs.318.660 million)

Rupees in thousand

Advances to related parties carry return at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 85 bps.

Maximum amounts due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year was

Rs.274.791 million ( 2021: Rs.333.700 million)
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17. ADVANCE INCOME TAX 2022 2021

Opening balance 559,155           466,799           

Paid during the year 290,950           231,759           

Refunds received during the year (75,665)
            

(83,581)
            

774,440
           

614,977
           

Adjusted against income tax payable (205,784)
          

(55,822)
            

Closing balance 568,656
           

559,155
           

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand 1,196

                

409

                  

Cash at banks on:

- current accounts 143,027

           

27,271

             

- deposit accounts 18.1 409,154

           

354,593

           

552,181

           

381,864

           

553,377

           

382,273

           

18.1

18.2

19. ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE

Leasehold land classified

as held-for-sale 6.3               52,250 0

39,800,000 shares of G3 Technologies Ltd.

 classified as held-for-sale 
 as at April 09, 2022 10.             401,637 0

Less: 20,000,000 shares sold on April 19, 2022 (200,200)

          

0

            201,437 0

            253,687 0

19.1

20. AUTHORISED CAPITAL

GGGL management has earmarked Rs.400,000 (2021: Rs.400,000) from available bank
balances in respect of security deposits received.

Rupees in thousand

The Company subsequent to the reporting date has sold 19,800,000 shares against
consideration of Rs.198.900 million.

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 2.75% to 7.50% ( 2021: 2.75% to 7.25%) per
annum.

The Holding Company, during the year, has increased its authorised capital from

Rs.3,000,000,000 divided into 300,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each to

Rs.4,000,000,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each. This increase

has been made to cater for future increase in paid-up share capital.
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21. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4(a)

(b)

22. SHARE PREMIUM

Opening balance 267,649

           

522,137

           

15% (2021: 10%) Bonus shares issued 

    during the year 21.4 267,649

           

254,488

           

0 267,649

           

The Holding Company, during the year, made a right issue of shares which was approved

by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 27, 2020 at the rate of Rs.10 per

share in the ratio of 66 right shares for every 100 ordinary shares held. The total size of the
issue was Rs.1,011,818 thousand and the shares were issued during the preceding year.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares of the Holding Company in all
aspects.

These shares were issued during the process of amalgamation of Ghani Southern Gases

(Pvt.) Ltd. with and into the Holding Company as on May 15, 2012.

These shares were issued, during the financial year ended June 30, 2020, to the sponsor

shareholders of Ghani Global Glass Ltd. under the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement
and Reconstruction amongst the shareholders of Ghani Gases Ltd., Ghani Global Glass Ltd. 

and Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on December 26, 2020

has approved issuance of 10% bonus shares by capitalising Rs.254,487 thousand out of

share premium account. Shares have been allotted during the preceding financial year.

The Holding Company, during the year by capitalising out of capital (share premium) and

revenue reserves, has allotted 41,990,465 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each as fully paid
bonus shares in the proportion of fifteen (15) ordinary shares for every hundred (100)

ordinary shares held by the members of the Holding Company at the closure of the

business on October 14, 2021. This bonus issue rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing ordinary shares of the  Holding Company.

2022 2021 2022 2021

- - - -   Number - - - - 

224,138,555  224,138,555   Ordinary shares of Rs.10 
each fully paid in cash (note 21.1) 2,241,386          2,241,386  

13,000           13,000           

130                    130            

14,424,253    14,424,253     

144,243             144,243     

83,351,092    41,360,627     
833,511             413,606     

321,926,900  279,936,435   3,219,270          2,799,365  

 --- Rupees in thousand ---

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued
for consideration other than cash under
the Scheme of Arrangement for
Amalgamation (note 21.2)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued
for consideration other than cash under
the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangement and Reconstruction (note
21.3)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued
as fully paid bonus shares (note 21.4)
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22.1

22.2

23. LOANS FROM SPONERS / DIRECTORS - Unsecured 2022 2021

Note

Opening balance 147,770
           

1,044,141
        

Loans received during the year 0
                       

146,905
           

Loans repaid during the year (147,770)
          

(1,043,276)
       

Closing balance 0
                       

147,770
           

23.1

24. LONG TERM FINANCES

From banking companies - secured

GGGL

Diminishing Musharakah - vehicles 24.1 51,670

             

9,099

               

Diminishing Musharakah - machinery 24.2 57,763

             

134,400

           

Diminishing Musharakah - machinery 24.3 21,089

             

60,652

             

Islamic refinance facility - salaries and wages 24.4 17,561

             

51,759

             

Syndicate financing - plant 24.5 0

                       

74,582

             

Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance 

Facility (ITERF) 24.6 470,000

           

202,715

           

            618,083            533,207 

Diminishing Musharakah 24.7 3,103

                

5,662

               

Diminishing Musharakah 24.8 13,014

             

36,174

             

Diminishing Musharakah 24.9 354,525

           

436,338

           

Islamic Refinance Facility 24.10 39,186

             

84,392

             

Diminishing Musharakah (ITERF) 24.11 438,981

           

115,647

           

From Islamic Financial Institution - secured
Diminishing Musharakah 24.12 9,504

                

14,444

             

Others

From sponsoring directors - unsecured 24.13 52,000

             

52,000

             

            910,313 744,657

           

         1,528,396         1,277,864 
Current portion grouped under current liabilities:

GGGL           (130,864) (224,043)

          

GCIL (154,102)

          

(170,117)

          

(284,966)

          

(394,160)

          

1,243,430

        

883,704

           

This included balance amount of share premium received by the Holding Company on

2,500,000 ordinary shares at the rate of Rs.5 per share, share premium on 7,000,000

ordinary shares issued at Rs.2.50 each, share premium on 43,019,834 ordinary shares at
the rate of Rs.10 each and share premium of Rs.128.073 million on issue of 14,424,253

shares to the sponsors of Ghani Global Glass Ltd. under the Scheme.

In case of GGGL, this represents interest free, unsecured loans obtained from sponsors of
the Company to meet the liquidity / working capital requirements. In line with Technical

Release - 32 (TR 32 - Accounting Directors' Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these loans were shown as part of equity as these loans

were repayable at the discretion of GGGL.

Rupees in thousand

Share premium may be utilised by the Holding Company only for the purposes specified in
section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.Share premium amounting to Rs.66.134 million was

utilised during the financial year ended June 30, 2019 as per the provisions of section 81 of

the Companies Act, 2017.

GCIL
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24.1

(b)

( c )

24.2

24.3

24.4 Islamic refinance facility 2022 2021

Opening balance 51,759

             

0

Total loan obtained 0 71,546

             

Less: deferred income - effect of subsidised mark-up (163)

                 

(1,901)

              

Less: repaid during the year (34,035)

            

(17,886)

            

17,561

             

51,759

             

GGGL acquired certain vehicles under the diminishing musharakah facility. The balance is

repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments carrying a profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1%
per annum (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 1% per annum). It is secured against 10% cash

margin and is registered jointly on bank's name and customer's name.

This includes amount payable in respect of diminishing musharakah finance arrangements

for purchase of vehicles. These finances are repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments. It

carries a profit rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% with floor of 7% and ceiling of 20%. It is

secured against 10% to 20% security deposit varying according to the vehicle.

GGGL

Rupees in thousand

GGGL acquired certain vehicles under the diminishing musharakah facility. The term of the

agreement is 3 to 5 years. The loan is repayable in equal monthly instalments payable in

arrears. Profit is charged at 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2021: 6 months

KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum) with 8% floor and 18% Cap (2021: 8% floor and 18% Cap).

It is secured against 10% security deposit and post dated cheques / debit authority for entire

tenure. Also, a hypothecation charge is registered with Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan.

This represents the outstanding balance of diminishing musharakah facility availed for

import of machinery. The term of the agreement is 3 years. The balance is repayable in

monthly instalments. It carries profit rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2021: 1

month KIBOR plus 1.5% to 3 months KIBOR plus 1.0% per annum). It is secured against

specific charge on machinery amounting to Rs. 118.625 million.

This represents the outstanding balance of diminishing musharakah facility for import of 6

ampule machines. The term of the agreement is 3 years and the balance is repayable in

equal quarterly instalments. It carries a profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.95% per

annum (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 1.95% per annum) with 8% floor and 18% Cap (2021:

8% floor and 18% Cap). The facility is secured against exclusive charge over fixed assets

(machinery) amounting to Rs. 240 million inclusive of 20% margin and ranking charge on all

present and future assets of GGGL for Rs. 250 million. Moreover, there may be an increase

in other securities as required by the bank from time to time. The bank shall have a bankers

lien and right of set off on all deposits, accounts and properties of the customers held with

the bank. 
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(a)

24.5

24.6

24.7

24.8

24.9

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facilities having credit limit of Rs.5.987 million
(2021: Rs.7.858 million) and Rs.37.711 million ( 2021: Rs.46.325) million availed from a
banking company to finance machinery & equipment. The facilities are available upto July,
2022 and May, 2023 respectively. The facilities carry profit at the rate of 1 year KIBOR +
0.80% and 6 months KIBOR + 0.80% respectively. These facilities are secured against first
pari passu charge of Rs.110 million over fixed assets, first specific charge of Rs.17.500

million over imported assets and equitable mortgage over land and buildings.

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.10 million availed

from a banking company for purchase of vehicles. The agreement tenor is 3 years and the
balance is repayable in 36 instalments ending June, 2022. It carries profit at the rate of 3
months KIBOR + 1% and is secured against ownership of Musharakah assets in favour of
the banking company.

GCIL

This facility was obtained to establish a tubing glass manufacturing plant which had a credit
limit of Rs.600 million (2021: Rs.600 million), carrying profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus
1.95% per annum (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 1.95% per annum) repayable quarterly. It
was secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of GGGL
for Rs.800 million and corporate guarantee of the Holding Company with grace period for
principal repayment of 24 months from the date of first drawdown. The term of the
agreement was six years including grace period and was fully repaid on completion of its
long term.

This represents the remaining balance of diminishing musharakah facility under islamic

refinance scheme for the payment of salaries and wages to workers and employees of
GGGL to dampen the effect of COVID-19 for a period of 2.5 years including 06 months
grace period. The repayment will be made in 8 equal quarterly instalments after grace

period and has started from January, 2021. It carries 3% concessional rate of profit (2021:
3%). The facility is secured against 1st pari passu charge of Rs. 47.010 million over plant

and machinery.

This represents finance obtained by GGGL under ITERF scheme of State Bank of Pakistan
amounting to Rs.470 million carrying profit rate of 4.5% per annum. This loan has been

utilised to install a new furnace and related equipment for manufacturing of glass tubing and
will be repaid in eight years including 2 years of grace period in quarterly instalments. This
facility is secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of

GGGL with 25% margin registered with SECP and collective personal guarantee of three
sponsoring directors of GGGL.

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.450 million ( 2021:
Rs.450 million) availed from a banking company to finance machinery and equipment; the
facility tenor is 5 years including 1 year grace period. The balance is repayable in 16 equal
quarterly instalments and carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1%. The facility is
secured against pari passu charge with 25% margin aggregating Rs.600 million over all
plant and machinery of GCIL. The banking company has allowed moratorium of one year
under SBP BPRD circular no. 13/2020; accordingly, repayment has commenced from

October, 2021.
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24.10 Islamic refinance facility 2022 2021

Opening balance 84,392             22,916             

Facility obtained during the year 0
                       

86,038
             

Payment made during the year (47,059)
            

(21,243)
            

Deferred income 1,853
                

(3,319)
              

39,186
             

84,392
             

24.11

24.12

24.13

25 REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - Sukuk 2022 2021

Long term certificates 379,167

           

595,834

           

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (216,667)

          

(216,667)

          

162,500

           

379,167

           

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.442 million (2021:

Rs.500 million) under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) ITERF Scheme to finance capital

expenditure requirements related to procuring Gaseous Air Separation Unit (ASU); draw

down has been allowed in multiple tranches. The facility tenor is 8 years including 2 years

grace period; repayment will be made in quarterly instalments as per payment plan. It

carries profit at SBP rate + 4% per annum.The facility is secured against exclusive charge

over operating fixed assets (excluding land and buildings) of the new unit for Rs.625 million,

first pari passu charge of Rs.625 million over all present and future fixed assets of GCIL,

personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of GCIL and assignment of receivables.

These Islamic finance facilities carry profit at the rates ranging from 6 months KIBOR + 1%
to 3 months KIBOR + 1.25% ( 2021: 3 months KIBOR + 0.95% to 1.25%). These Islamic
finance facilities having credit limit of Rs.51.275 million ( 2021: Rs.78.655 million) are

secured against ownership of Musharakah assets in favour of a financial institution. These
finance facilities are repayable in monthly instalments ending July, 2024. These finance

facilities are secured against ranking charge over plant & machinery, ownership of vehicles

in the name of financial institution and personal guarantees of the Directors of GCIL.

These loans have been provided by sponsoring Directors to meet capital expenditure

requirements of GCIL and are repayable after 5 years at the discretion of the lenders. Profit

rates on these loans range from 1 month KIBOR  and profit is payable on monthly basis. 

This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.110 million under
Islamic Refinance Scheme for the payment of salaries and wages to workers and

employees of GCIL to dampen the effect of Covid-19 for a period of 2.5 years including 06

months grace period. The repayment is to be made in 8 equal quarterly instalments after a
grace period and has commenced from January, 2021. It carries profit at the rate of 3%.

The facility is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.96 million over plant &
machinery and personal guarantees of three sponsoring Directors of GCIL. 

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand
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25.1

26. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS 

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 2022 2021

Lease liabilities                 6,040                5,548 

Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities                    301                   287 

                5,739                5,261 

27.1 Movement of lease liabilities

Balance at beginning of the year                 5,548                2,741 

Lease reassessment                    283                2,607 

Interest charge for the year                    496                   473 

Payment made during the year                   (287)                  (273)

Balance at end of the year                 6,040                5,548 

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments 

Payable upto one year                    301                   287 

Payable between one to five years                 1,745                1,662 

Payable after five years               28,526              28,910 

              30,572              30,859 

27.2 Amortisation for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by straight line method

over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under administrative
expenses. Right of use assets represent leasehold land, which is located at 53 - A,

Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 kanals having covered area of
217,800  sq. ft.

Rupees in thousand

These security deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the business in accordance

with written agreements. These represent amounts received from the customers on

installation of certain equipment and may be used in ordinary course of GCIL and GGGL
business under provisions of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017.

GCIL had issued rated, privately placed and secured long term Islamic Certificates (Sukuk)
as instrument of redeemable capital under section 120 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(now the Companies Act, 2017) amounting Rs.1,300 million divided into 13,000 certificates

of Rs.100,000 each for a period of 6 years under an agreement dated November 15,
2016 for swapping of financing facilities and to meet business requirements. These

certificates are redeemable in 24 consecutive quarterly instalments commenced from

February 03, 2017 and ending on February 03, 2024. Rentals are payable on quarterly
basis along with redemption of certificates. These carry profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus
1%. These certificates are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future
fixed assets of GCIL to the extent of Rs.1,625 million. The banking company had allowed
moratorium of one year; consequently, repayment of instalments for the months of May,
2020 to February, 2021  were deferred for one year.
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2022 2021

28. DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note

Gas infrastructure development cess 28.1 11,846             14,919             

Deferred income 28.2 0
                       

883
                  

Deferred taxation 28.5 444,468
           

317,773
           

456,314
           

333,575
           

28.1 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)

Balance at year-end 19,098

             

22,638

             

Interest against provision for GIDC 1,480

                

0

                      

Discounting effect 0

                       

(3,540)

              

Closing liability based on present value 20,578

             

19,098

             

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (8,732)

              

(4,179)

              

11,846

             

14,919

             

28.2 Deferred income - Government grant

Balance at beginning of the year 24.1 4,077

                

3,832

               

Income recognised during the year 0

                       

5,953

               

Amortised during the year (3,591)

              

(5,708)

              

486

                   

4,077

               

Current portion grouped under current liabilities (486)

                 

(3,194)

              

0

                       

883

                  

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), during the preceding financial year, decided the

appeal against consumers upholding the vires of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

(GIDC) Act, 2015 through its judgment dated August 13, 2020. The review petition was filed

against the judgment, wherein the SCP provided some relief by increasing the time period

for recovery of GIDC from 24 instalments to 48 instalments. The review application,

however, was dismissed.

GCIL has filed a constitutional petition before the Lahore High Court (LHC) challenging the

imposition of GIDC amount of Rs.22.638 million. The order of the writ petition was not in

favour of GCIL, which was challenged in ICA before the LHC.

GCIL had recorded provision for GIDC, which was grouped under trade and other payables

during the financial year ended June 30, 2020. This amount was classified as non-current

liability at its value, by discounting future estimated cash flows using risk free rate of return

i.e. 8.60%. This resulted in income of Rs.3.540 million, which was grouped in other income

during the preceding financial year.

Rupees in thousand
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28.3

28.4

28.5 Deferred taxation 2022 2021

GCIL

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of

accelerated tax depreciation allowances 782,628

           

706,746

           

Deductible temporary differences arising 

in respect of:

- unused tax losses (135,101)

          

(273,188)

          

- allowance for expected credit loss (4,648)

              

(7,818)

              

- alternate corporate tax / minimum tax recoverable

against normal tax charge in future years (198,411)

          

(107,967)

          

(338,160)

          

(388,973)

          

444,468

           

317,773

           

GGGL
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of

accelerated tax depreciation allowances             227,021            210,050 
Deductible temporary differences arising 

in respect of:

Allowance for expected credit loss (1,765)

              

(1,842)

              

Payable to workers' profit participation fund (1,528)

              

(1,140)

              

Payable to workers' welfare fund (2,560)

              

(1,112)

              

Unused tax losses (267,307)

          

(313,872)

          

Tax credits over normal tax (11,082)

            

(24,790)

            

(284,242)

          

(342,756)

          

Deferred tax asset (57,221)

            

(132,706)

          

In response to COVID-19, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through Circular No. 6 of 2020,

has introduced a Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the workers and
employees of business concerns. The Refinance Scheme has been managed through
Participating Financial Institutions (PFIs) and funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained loans
from PFIs to ease their cash flow constraints and thereby avoid layoffs. The benefit of a
government loan at a below-market rate of interest has been treated as a government grant.

The loan has been measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments). The

benefit of the below market rate of interest has been measured as the difference between
the initial carrying value of loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds

received. The benefit has been accounted for and presented as deferred grant in
accordance with IAS 20. The deferred grant has been amortised at average borrowing cost

rate of GCIL, i.e. 8.50% ( 2021:8.60%) per annum; an amount of Rs.1,853 thousand ( 2021:
Rs.2,990 thousand) has been recognised in the current year statement of profit or loss in

this regard.

GGGL has recorded deferred income for government grants in accordance with IAS 20
“Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance” for the
treatment of loan received under Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries

that offers interest rate less than the market interest rate. The standard treats any benefit of
a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a government grant. The loan is
initially recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The

benefit of the below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial

carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received.
GGGL is treating it as per income approach and therefore the grant's benefit shall be
recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity records

the related expense.

Rupees in thousand
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2022 2021

Note
Trade creditors 116,363           213,492           

Accrued liabilities 175,896
           

165,040
           

Due to G3 Technologies Ltd.(an Associated Company) 360,900
           

0
                      

Contract liabilities - advances from customers 49,491
             

55,532
             

Advance  against leasehold land at Hattar 0
                       

15,000
             

Sales tax payable 44,161
             

0
                      

Workers' (profit) participation fund 29.1 55,651

             

40,859

             

Workers' welfare fund 29.2 45,418

             

23,619

             

Payable to employees' provident fund 37

                     

3

                      

Withholding income tax 5,444

                

3,516

               

853,361

           

517,061

           

29.1 Workers' (profit) participation fund
  

Opening payable balance  - GGGL 4,095

                

2,173

               

Opening payable /receivable balance  - GCIL 36,764

             

(4,426)

              

Paid during the year (60,282)

            

(17,149)

            

Allocations for the year 75,074

             

60,261

             

Closing payable balance  55,651

             

40,859

             

29.2 Workers' welfare fund

Opening balance 23,619

             

1,455

               

Adjusted during the year (6,730)

              

0

                      

Charge for the year 28,529

             

22,164

             

Closing balance 45,418

             

23,619

             

30. ACCRUED PROFIT

Profit accrued on :

Long term finances 38,935

             

21,978

             

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 9,533

                

8,053

               

Short term borrowings 63,293

             

17,826

             

111,761

           

47,857

             

Rupees in thousand

Being prudent, GGGL has not recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 57.220 million (2021:
Rs. 132.706 million).
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31. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 2022 2021

Note

From banking companies - secured - GGGL 31.1 534,000           120,992           

From banking companies - secured - GCIL 31.2 1,351,927
        

834,800
           

Book  overdrafts - unsecured 31.3 22,379
             

2,217
               

1,908,306
        

958,009
           

GGGL

31.1

GCIL

31.2

31.3

32. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT

LIABILITIES

Long term finances 24 284,966

           

394,160

           

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 25 216,667

           

216,667

           

Lease liabilities 27 301

                   

287

                  

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 28.1 8,732

                

4,179

               

Deferred income 28.2 486

                   

3,194

               

511,152

           

618,487

           

These finances are obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against first pari
passu hypothecation charge / ranking charge on the present and future current assets of the

GGGL; ranking charge on present and future fixed assets of GGGL, corporate guarantee of

Ghani Global Holdings Limited and personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of GGGL.

The rates of profit ranging from relevant KIBOR plus 0.85% to 2.25% (2021: relevant KIBOR

plus 1.25% to 2.25%). These facilities shall expire on various dates by January 21, 2023.

Total funded credit facilities from banks (other than loan from directors) as at the reporting

date were Rs. 585 million (2021: Rs. 200 million). 

These temporary bank overdrafts have arisen due to issuance of cheques for amounts in

excess of balance in bank accounts.

Rupees in thousand

These finances have been obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against

joint pari passu hypothecation charge on present and future current assets, personal

guarantees of sponsoring directors of GCIL and corporate guarantees of the Holding

Company. These form part of total credit funded facilities of Rs.1,815 million ( 2021:

Rs.1,535 million). The rates of profit range from 8.20% to 16.54% ( 2021: 7.70% to 14.91%)

per annum.These facilities are expiring on various dates by January 31,  2023.
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33. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Holding Company

Contingencies

33.1

33.2 Commitments

33.3

GGGL

Contingencies

33.4

33.5

33.6

Commitments

33.7

33.8

GCIL

33.9

33.10

Commitments for capital expenditure related to building amounted to Rs. 124 million (2021:
Rs. 25 million).

No commitments were outstanding as at June 30, 2022; (2021 : commitments against

irrevocable letters of credit for import of finished good stocks aggregated Rs. 32.927

million).

Facilities available for opening letters of credit aggregate Rs.250 million, which remained

unutilised at the year-end.

GCIL has filed two separate constitutional petitions on February 15, 2009 before the Lahore

High Court (the LHC), Lahore on the ground that the GCIL was not required to pay any
advance tax on electricity bills due to huge carried forward tax losses and available refunds.

The LHC has granted stay orders upon furnishing bank guarantees in favour of LESCO
amounting Rs.3.140 million. The outcome of the cases is pending and the management is

hopeful that matter shall be decided in favour of GCIL.

Commitments in respect of letter of credit for machinery, raw materials, stores and spares

outstanding as at the reporting date were of Rs. 223.914 million (2021: Rs. 314.149 million).

The Holding Company has provided corporate guarantees aggregating Rs.1,048.900
thousand (2021: Rs.1,194,900 thousand) to banks against finance facilities availed by its

Subsidiary Companies.

During the financial year ended June 30, 2020, GCIL has filed a writ petition before the

Sindh High Court, Karachi against Federation of Pakistan owing to dispute between K-
Electric regarding origination bill including amount of Rs.35.858 million in lieu of Industrial

Support Package (ISPA). As per order of the Sindh High Court dated May 05, 2020; GCIL
has submitted post-dated cheques of the involved amount to the Court for further

proceeding of the matter. The management is of the view that the case will be decided in
favour of  GCIL.

Guarantees were issued by banks on behalf of GGGL in the ordinary course of business
amounting to Rs. 56.41 million (2021: Rs. 56.410 million) in the favour of Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Ltd. against gas connection.

Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of GGGL in the ordinary course of business
amounting to Rs. 14.304 million (2021: Rs. 14.304 million) in favour of Lahore Electric

Supply Company (LESCO) against extension of electricity load.

GGGL has filed a petition under section 33 of EOBI Act, 1976 before the Adjudicating
Authority EOBI, Lahore to contest self assessed and illegal demands amounting to Rs.
7.008 million issued by Regional Office, EOBI. The case is at argument stage and the
management is hopeful, as per advice of the legal counsel, that the case would be decided

in favour of GGGL.
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33.11

33.12

33.13

33.14

Commitments

33.15

33.16

KLTL

33.17 There was no known contingent liability as at June 30, 2022.

33.18 No commitments were outstanding as at June 30, 2022.

34. SALES - Net 2022 2021

Gross sales - local

Supplies 6,453,766

        

5,848,684

        

Services 38,009

             

25,724

             

6,491,775

        

5,874,408

        

Export 12,893

             

81,195

             

6,504,668

        

5,955,603

        

Sales / service tax (870,239)

          

(749,929)

          

Trade discounts (12,003)

            

(11,212)

            

(882,242)

          

(761,141)

          

5,622,426

        

5,194,462

        

The un-availed funded and unfunded credit facilities from banks (other than loans from

directors) as of reporting date were for Rs.815.440 million ( 2021: Rs.540.846 million).

These limits include credit lines that are interchangeable and may be utilised for either

funded facilities or unfunded facilities.

Bank guarantees aggregating Rs.43.915 million (June 30, 2021: Rs.37.671 million) have
been provided to various customers / institutions against supplies of products.

The Department has filed references before the Lahore High Court against the orders

passed by the Appellate Tribunal in favour of GCIL for the Tax Years 2011 and 2014.The
references are pending adjudication.

Commitments in respect of letters of credit amounted to Rs.1,535.066 million (June 30,

2021: Rs.159.354 million).

Super tax has been provided for at the rate of 4% of taxable income instead of 10% as

required by section 4C (Super tax on high earning persons) of the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 as the management has filed a writ petition before the LHC subsequent to the

reporting date. Unprovided for super tax provision amounts to Rs.47.100 million

approximately as at June 30, 2022.

Commitments for construction of buildings as at June 30, 2022 amounted Rs.100 million;

(2021: Rs.22 million).

Rupees in thousand
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35. COST OF SALES Note 2022 2021

Raw materials consumed 35.1 196,492           255,528           

Freight inward 13,742             2,554               

Salaries, wages and other benefits 35.2 216,352
           

242,540
           

Fuel and power 1,963,527
        

1,508,877
        

Utilities 4,835
                

4,467
               

Packing materials consumed 76,044
             

76,262
             

Consumable stores and spares 292,573
           

202,346
           

Legal and professional 261
                   

171

Rent, rates and taxes 11,507

             

11,926

             

Repair and maintenance 24,133

             

26,281

             

Communication 880

                   

1,134

               

Travelling and vehicles' running 12,138

             

7,656

               

Insurance 11,571

             

11,976

             

Depreciation 6.8 187,791

           

196,702

           

Inadmissible sales tax (input), freight 

 and other overheads 69,979

             

83,810

             

3,081,825

        

2,632,230

        

Changes in work in process

Opening 5,165

                

4,932

               

Closing (7,413)

              

(5,165)

              

(2,248)

              

(233)

                 

3,079,577

        

2,631,997

        

Cost of goods manufactured

Changes in finishing goods

Opening stock 343,989

           

247,428

           

Purchases 377,877

           

577,086

           

Closing stock (366,568)

          

(343,989)

          

355,298

           

480,525

           

3,434,875

        

3,112,522

        

35.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 121,508

           

79,367

             

Purchases 267,165

           

297,669

           

Available for use 388,673

           

377,036

           

Closing stock (192,181)

          

(121,508)

          

Materials consumed 196,492

           

255,528

           

 Rupees in thousand 
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35.2

36. DISTRIBUTION COSTS 2022 2021

Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1 74,093             73,338             

Freight outward 6,275                12,014             

Transportation charges 192,405
           184,622

           

Traveling, boarding, lodging and vehicles' running 10,765
             

10,200
             

Communication 804
                   

953
                  

Rent, rates and taxes 5,395
                

10,136
             

Loading and unloading 844
                   

2,076
               

Postage and courier 273
                   

215
                  

Repair and maintenance 2,654
                

3,841
               

Office expenses 699
                   

7,669
               

Commission against exports 508

                   

850

                  

Others 30,348

             

31,465

             

325,063

           

337,379

           

36.1

37. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 37.1 109,076

           

115,829

           

Communication 2,346

                

2,293

               

Electricity and other utilities 6,772

                

4,541

               

Postage , telegram and telephone 137

                   

337

                  

Rent, rates and taxes 11,102

             

10,834

             

Entertainment 0

                       

37

                    

Repair and maintenance 4,159

                

4,224

               

Traveling and conveyance 814

                   

893

                  

Vehicles' running and maintenance 7,231

                

5,220

               

Printing and stationery 4,124

                

3,065

               

Donations and charity 37.2 4,375

                

9,201

               

Fees and subscription 36,033

             

68,086

             

Advertisement 2,084

                

2,195

               

Insurance 4,247

                

2,560

               

Underwriting commission 117

                   

7,449

               

Depreciation 6.8 32,929

             

22,795

             

Amortisation of right of use assets 8 8,779

                

665

                  

Amortisation of intangible assets 9.4 2,962

                

2,961

               

Auditors' remuneration 37.3 3,672

                

2,970

               

Legal and professional (other than Auditors) 9,475

                

15,330

             

Office expenses 2,692

                

574

                  

Others 16,324

             

19,926

             

269,450

           

301,985

           

These include Rs.4.998 million (2021: Rs.4.341 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

Rupees in thousand

 These include Rs.8.631 million (2021: Rs.7.455 million) in respect of retirement benefits. 
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37.1

37.2

37.3 Auditors' remuneration: 2022 2021

Note

ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co.

- statutory audits 1,430
                

1,300
               

- half yearly reviews 818
                   

555
                  

-  other certifications 359
                   

215
                  

2,607
                

2,070
               

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

- statutory audit 835

                   

675

                  

- half yearly review 200

                   

175

                  

-  other certifications 30

                     

50

                    

1,065

                

900

                  

3,672

                

2,970

               

38. OTHER EXPENSES

Allowance for expected credit loss 14.1 11,695

             

14,513

             

Debit balances written off 0

                       

1,505

               

Exchange fluctuation loss 0

                       

1,012

               

Loss on held-for-sale investments 948

                   

0

                      

Inadmissible sales tax 0

                       

0

                      

Workers' welfare fund 29.2 28,529

             

22,164

             

Workers' (profit) participation fund 29.1 75,074

             

60,261

             

Others 100

                   

139

                  

116,346

           

99,594

             

39. OTHER INCOME

Profit on bank deposits 15,660

             

8,701

               

Credit balances written back 28,273

             

0

                      

Advance against leasehold land at Hattar 15,000

             

0

                      

Return on advances to an Associated Company 5,877

                

0

                      

Exchange fluctuation gain 2,558

                

497

                  

Gain on forward exchange contracts 7,949

                

0

                      

Gas Infrastructure Development

Cess - discounting effect 28.1 0

                       

3,540

               

Amortisation of deferred income 1,738

                

5,708

               

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 6.4 134,455

           

24,369

             

Indenting commission 39.1 2,950

                

17,337

             

Discount received 0

                       

1,748

               

Miscellaneous 1,821

                

0

                      

216,281

           

61,900

             

These include Rs.7.943 million (2021: Rs.2.907 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

The directors and their spouses have no interest in the donees.

Rupees in thousand
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39.1

2022 2021

Note

40. FINANCE COST

Finance cost on:

- long term finances 76,236
             

99,785
             

- redeemable capital - Sukuk 49,462
             

53,572
             

- short term borrowings 164,317
           

143,389
           

-  Interest against provision for Gas 

   Infrastructure and Development Cess 1,480
                

0
                      

-  Mark-up on advances received 

   from an associated company 906

                   

0

                      

- unwinding of loan 1,738

                

2,717

               

- lease liabilities 496

                   

473

                  

Bank charges and commission 4,547

                

7,283

               

299,182

           

307,219

           

41. TAXATION

Current

- for the year             271,267            193,029 

- prior years                (3,355)                   810 

            267,912            193,839 

Deferred     28.5             126,695            111,398 

            394,607            305,237 

GGGL

41.1

41.2

GCIL

41.3

41.4

Returns filed by the Company upto the tax year 2021 have been assessed under the self
assessment scheme envisaged in section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance).

Rupees in thousand

Assessment up to tax year 2021 is finalized (deemed assessment) and the available tax
losses of the Company are Rs. 924.863 million (2021: Rs. 1,131.230 million).

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the

Company is mainly liable to pay tax due under sections 113-C of the Ordinance.

This represents commission received from Precision Parts UK Ltd., United Kingdom,
against supply of Health Care Business equipment to a hospital in Pakistan..

Current tax is charged on the basis of higher of minimum tax on turnover under section 113

and Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) on accounting profit under section 113-C of Income Tax
Ordinance 2001, whichever is higher. During the year, the Company falls under ACT and
provision on accounting profit has been made after taking into account applicable tax credits

and rebates and unused tax losses.

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 121 Annual Report 2022



42. COMBINED EARNINGS  PER SHARE

There is no dilutive effect on earnings  

per share of the Holding Company, which is based on: 2022 2021

Profit  after taxation attributable to 

     equity holders of the Holding Company 660,027
           

549,410
           

Weighted average number of  shares Restated

outstanding during the year 321,926,900
    

269,972,552
    

Combined earnings per share - basic 2.05

                  

2.04

                 

43. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

43.1

43.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

Rupees in thousand

(Number of shares)

---------- Rupees ----------

No remuneration was paid to chief executive, directors and executives during the current

and preceding financial years. Further, no meeting fee was paid to directors for attending
the board meetings.

GGGL

No remuneration other than meeting fee was paid to any director of GGGL.

In addition to above, chief executive officer, directors, and certain executives have been
provided with free use of GGGL maintained vehicles in accordance with their terms of
employment.

An executive is defined as an employee, other than the chief executive and directors,

whose basic salary exceeds Rs.1.200 million in a financial year.

The Holding Company

Managerial remuneration 16,363           13,090           0 0 19,428           13,269          35,791           26,359          

Allowances and perquisites 1,044             836                0 0 1,240             847               2,284             1,683            

Meeting fee 0 0 375            230 0 0 375                230               

Post employment benefits 1,450             1,161             0 0 1,722             1,176            3,172             2,337            

18,857           15,087           375            230 22,390           15,292          41,622           30,609          

Number of persons 1 1 6 4 7 4 14 9

2022 2021 2022

Chief Executive Officer
Non Executive 

Directors
Executives Total

------------------------------------------------------------Rs. in thousand------------------------------------------------------------

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
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43.3

(a)

(b)

43.4

44. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

44.1

44.2 GGGL

No remuneration was paid to chief executive, directors and executives during the current
year. Further, no meeting fee  was paid to directors for attending the board meetings.

The Holding Company

Related parties comprise of Associated Companies, directors of the Holding Company,
Companies in which directors also hold directorships and key management personnel. The

Holding Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various

related parties. The Holding Company has executed no significant transaction with any
related parties during the current and preceding years.

The chief executive and directors of GCIL have been provided with free use of GCIL
maintained cars in accordance with their entitlement. Some of the executives have also

been provided with GCIL maintained cars as per their terms of employment.

No meeting fee was paid to the directors for attending Board meetings during the current
and preceding years.

Related parties comprise of Associated Companies due to common directorship, directors
of GGGL, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit funds. GGGL in the
normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of

related parties (with whom GGGL has transacted) along with relationship and transactions
with related parties, are as follows:

GCIL

KLTL

Description

Managerial remuneration 17,408      21,008    30,889        13,926     16,926   27,034       

Medical 696           1,885      1,236          557          1,513     1,081         

Provident fund contribution 1,450        1,750      2,573          1,160       1,410     2,252         

19,554      24,643    34,698        15,643     19,849   30,367       

No. of persons 1 2 10 1 2 10

---------------------------Rupees in thousand---------------------------

2022 2021

Chief 

Executive
Directors Executives

Chief 
Executive

Directors Executives
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2022 2021

G3 Technologies Ltd. Sales of goods               14,000 0

Receipt against sales               14,000 0

Director Rent charged 4,832                4,392               

Rent paid (366)                 4,359               

CEO Sale of vehicle 5,500
                

0

Key management personnel

Sponsors Loan repaid (147,720)
          

(633,890)
          

Director Loan repaid 0 (11,400)
            

Others

Employees' Provident 

Fund Trust Contribution 16,707
             

15,330
             

44.3

2022 2021

Associated Company

Return capitalised 14,029

             

749

                  

Return on advance 

given 3,915

                

5,160

               

Sales 142,560

           

0

                      

Sale of leasehold land 125,000

           

0

                      

Investments made 398,793

           

0

                      

Investments sold 200,200

           

0

                      

Key management personnel

Others directors

Equity

Sale of vehicle 30,000

             

0

                      

Loan paid - net 0

                       

(262,480)

          

Provident fund trust Contribution paid 26,436

             

24,826

             

44.4

2022 2021

2,000

                

0

2,400

                

0

Advances received

Advances paid

G3 Technologies Ltd.

Rupees in thousand

GCIL

Related parties comprise of Associated Companies, directors of GCIL, key management

personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. GCIL in the normal course of business carries
out transactions with various related parties. Details of related parties with whom GCIL has

transacted along with relationship and transactions were as follows:

KLTL

Rupees in thousand

 Nature of 

transaction 

 Nature of 

transaction Rupees in thousand

Related parties comprise of Associated Companies due to common directorship, directors

of KLTL and key management personnel. KLTL, in the normal coerce of business, carries-

out transactions with various related parties. Details are as follows:

 Nature of 

transaction 

Relationship with related party

Relationship with related party
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category 2022 2021

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Long term deposits 79,654 72,214

Trade debts 1,226,552 1,005,837

Trade deposits and other receivables 147,218 97,501

Bank balances 552,181 381,864

2,005,605 1,557,416

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Long term finances 1,528,396 1,277,864

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 379,167 595,834

Long term security deposits 44,666 52,422

Lease liabilities 6,040 5,548

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 20,578 19,098

Trade and other payables 292,296 378,535

Accrued profit 111,761 47,857

Short term borrowings 1,908,306 958,009

4,291,210 3,335,167

45.1 Financial Risk Factors

45.2 Market risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest

rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Rupees in thousand

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks:

currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Risk management is carried-out by the Group's finance departments under policies

approved by the boards of directors. The Group's finance departments evaluate financial

risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity, provided by the board of directors.
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(a) Currency risk

GGGL

2022 2021

Trade and other payables 0 59,087

             

Trade debts 0 1,971

               

Letters of credit outstanding 223,914

           

314,149

           

223,914

           

375,207

           

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2022 2021 2022 2021

181.87 158.09 206.00 157.54

Sensitivity analysis

GCIL

(b) Profit rate risk

At June 30, 2022, had Pakistan Rupee weakened / strengthened by 1% against the U.S.$

with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit before taxation for the year would

have been lower / higher by Rs.2.240 million (2021: Rs.3.750 million). 

GGGL exposure to currency risk as follows: 

Reporting date rate 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from
future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in

foreign currencies.

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market profit rates. At the reporting date, the profit rate

profile of the Group's  profit bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to

transactions entered into in foreign currencies. GCIL is exposed to currency risk on import

of stores & spares and stock-in-trade mainly denominated in U.S. $. GCIL is not exposed to

foreign currency risk as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 as it has no funded foreign

currency financial instrument at the respective reporting dates. 

Rupees per 

U.S.$

Average rate

 Rupees in thousand
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

(c) Price risk

45.3 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

GGGL

The Group's does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not affect
profit or loss of the Group.

Credit risk of GGGL arises from deposits with banks, trade deposits, trade debts, long term

deposits and other receivables. The management assesses the credit quality of the
customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the Board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and
financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are

accepted.

GGGL monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings. Carrying values of
financial assets exposed to credit risk and which are neither past due nor impaired are as
under:

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit exposure.

At June 30, 2022, if profit rate on variable rate financial liabilities had been 1% higher /
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been lower / higher by Rs.37.995 million (2021: Rs.28.350 million) mainly as a result of

higher profit rates.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate

risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market. The Group is not exposed to any significant price risk.

2022 2021 2022 2021

Fixed rate instruments

Cash at banks on

deposit accounts 2.75% to 7.50% 2.75% to 4% 409,154 354,593

Variable rate instruments

Long term finances

1,528,396 1,277,864

Redeemable capital - Sukuk

379,167 595,834

Lease liabilities 8.50 to 8.85% 8.85 to 14.63% 6,040 5,548

relevant KIBOR + relevant KIBOR +
Short term borrowings 8.20% to 16.54% 7.70% to 14.91% 1,885,927 955,792

3 months KIBOR + 

1%

3 months KIBOR 

+ 1%

Effective rates per annum Carrying amount

Rupees in thousand

SBP rate + 3% to 

1 year KIBOR + 

1.25%

SBP rate + 3% to 6 

months KIBOR + 

1.25%
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2022 2021

Long term deposits 12,461             11,427             

Trade debts 294,877           276,747           

Trade deposits and  other receivables 6,722
                

32,991
             

Balances with banks 49,211
             

166,488
           

363,271
           

487,653
           

The aging of trade receivables as at the reporting date  is as follows:

Not past due 153,775

           

188,272

           

Past due 1-90 110,990

           

57,697

             

Past due 91-180 13,770

             

12,411

             

181 - 365 days 5,591

                

6,519

               

More than 365 days 16,836

             

18,466

             

300,962

           

283,365

           

Allowance for expected credit loss (6,086) (6,618)

294,876

           

276,747

           

Concentration of credit risk

2022 2021

Trade debts 294,877

           

276,747

           

Balances with banks 49,211

             

166,488

           Rs. In thousand 

Out of the total financial assets, credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and balances with
banks as they constitute 93% (2021: 92%) of the total financial assets. GGGL's exposure to
credit risk in respect of trade debts is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. GGGL establishes an allowance for expected credit loss that represents its

estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade receivables. Age of trade debts at the

reporting date is mentioned above.

Rs. In thousand 

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to GGGL’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of

a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. GGGL identifies concentrations of
credit risk by reference to type of counterparty. Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of
counterparty is as follows:
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Current due 0% 158,508

           

0

1 to 30 Days 0% 53,890

             

0

31 to 60 Days 0% 35,469

             

0

61 to 90 Days 0% 21,631

             

0

91 to 180 Days 0.013% 13,770

             

2

                      

181 to 365 Days 0.214% 5,591

                

12

                    

365 to 730 days 4.620% 6,324

                

292

                  

Greater than 730 days 100% 5,780

                

5,780

               

300,963

           

6,086

               

GCIL

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of GCILs

performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation

and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. GCIL attempts to control credit risk by
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

The loss allowance for trade debts as at reporting date was determined by using provision
matrix which is as follows:

Rs. In thousand %

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage exposure
to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into

account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. Where
considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. The

management has set a maximum credit period of 30 days to reduce the credit risk. Credit
risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings.

In respect of other counter parties, due to GCIL long standing business relationship with

them, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their
obligations to GCIL.

Ageing Bucket

Exposure at 

default
Expected 

credit loss

Expected credit loss 

rate

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to
measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the

reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. GGGL does not hold collateral as security.
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Exposure to credit risk

2022 2021

Long term deposits 67,193
             

67,193

Trade debts 1,054,626

        

714,313

Trade deposits, bank profit and other receivables 144,276

           

87,013

Bank balances 499,571

           

63,288

1,765,666

        

931,807

           

Bank balances 

The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external

credit ratings assigned to them as follows :

Out of the total financial assets of GCIL, credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and
balances with banks as they constitute 88% (2021: 83%) of the total financial assets. GCILs

exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts other than Government parties is influenced

mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. GCIL establishes an allowance
for expected credit loss that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
debts except for Government parties.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably high 
credit ratings.

Trade debts of GCIL are not exposed to significant credit risk as GCIL trades with credit

worthy customers. Trade debts except for Government parties aggregating Rs.641.261

million (2021: Rs.395.653 million) are past due of which Rs.16.027 million (2021: Rs.26.960
million) have been impaired. Required allowance as determined by management as per
IFRS 9 - 'Financial instruments - recognition and measurement' has been made in these

consolidated financial statements.

Trade debts are mainly due from local customers against sale of medical & industrial gases
and chemicals. Sales to GCIL customers are made on specific terms and conditions.

Customers' credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to GCIL established

policy, procedures and controls relating to customers' credit risk management. Credit limits
have been established for all customers based on internal rating criteria. Credit quality of

the customers is also assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2022 along with comparative is

tabulated below:

Rupees in thousand
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Liquidity risk

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due. The Group's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies

maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of

adequate credit facilities. The Group's treasury departments aim at maintaining flexibility in

funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Particulars
Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Less than

1 year

Between

1 to 5

years 

Year ended June 30, 2022

Long term finances   1,528,396 1,560,376                    385,191               535,755 

Redeemable capital - Sukuk      379,167 438,715                       263,395               175,320 

Long term security deposits        44,666            44,666                          0                 44,666 

Lease liabilities          6,040 30,572                                301                   1,745 

Gas Infrastructure 

Development Cess        20,578 22,638                           11,319                 11,319 

Trade and other payables      292,296 292,296                       292,296                          0 

Accrued profit      111,761          111,761               111,761                          0 

Short term borrowings   1,885,927       2,070,724            2,070,724                          0 

Unclaimed dividend             844                 844                      844                          0 

4,269,675  4,572,592      3,135,831          768,805             

  --------------- Rupees in thousand --------------- 

2022 2021

Short term Long term

Bank Alfalah Ltd. A1+ AA+ PACRA 6,494                  102,479            

The Bank of Punjab  A1+ AA+ PACRA 1,193                  3,960                

Allied Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 4,072                  2,590                

Askari Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA+ PACRA 91,226                1,137                

BankIslami Pakistan Ltd.  A1 A+ PACRA 3,523                  16,237              

Dubai Islamic Bank 

    (Pakistan) Ltd. A-1+ AA JCR-VIS 70                       1,415                

Faysal Bank Ltd. A-1+ AA JCR-VIS 1,352                  2,927                

JS Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA- PACRA 108                     720                   

National Bank of Pakistan  A1+ AAA PACRA 40,075                 9,858                

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA+ PACRA 274,682              91,527              

Standard Chartered Bank 

    (Pakistan) Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 37 102                   

MCB Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 65                       14                     

Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.  A-1 A+ JCR-VIS 49,734                68,611              

Habib Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 52,726                949                   

Meezan Bank Ltd.  A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 18,605                59,123

Soneri Bank Ltd.  A1+ AA- PACRA 4,399                  3,674                

Bank Al Habib Ltd.  A1+ AAA PACRA 3,575                  15,433              

The Bank of Khyber A1 A PACRA 93                       87                     

MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A PACRA 39 39                     

Summit Bank Limited 85 981                   

United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 28 3                       

552,181              381,864            

Rating Rating 

agency Rupees in thousand
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46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2022 2021

Total debt 3,821,909 2,837,255

Cash and bank balances (553,377) (382,273)

Net debt 3,268,532 2,454,982

Share capital 3,219,270 2,799,365

Share premium 0 267,649

Loans from directors 0 147,770

Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land 929,285

Unappropriated profit 1,458,084 950,313

Equity 5,606,639 4,165,097

Capital 8,875,171 6,620,079

Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 36.83% 37.08%

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes

adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders or issue new shares. The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio,

which is net debt comprising of mark-up bearing long term & short term finances and lease

liabilities less cash & bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2022 and June

30, 2021 is as follows:

The Group's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as

a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of

its business.

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined

on the basis of profit rates effective at the respective reporting dates. The rates of profit

have been disclosed in the respective notes to these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

Particulars
Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Less than

1 year

Between

1 to 5

years

Year ended June 30, 2021

Long term finances   1,277,864 1,390,088                    434,001               956,087 

Redeemable capital - Sukuk      595,834 668,120                       258,247               409,873 

Long term security deposits        52,422 52,422                                    0                 52,422 

Lease liabilities          5,548 30,859                                287                   1,662 

Gas Infrastructure 

Development Cess        19,098            22,638                   4,179                 18,459 

Trade and other payables 378,535              378,535 378,535                                      0 

Accrued profit 47,857       47,857           47,857                                        0 

Short term borrowings 958,009     963,919         963,919                                      0 

Unclaimed dividend             844                 844                      844                          0 

3,336,011  3,555,282      2,087,869          1,438,503          

  --------------- Rupees in thousand --------------- 
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47. Disclosure Requirements for All Shares Islamic Index

47.1 GCIL

Sharia arrang-

ements

Non - Sharia 
arrangements

Sharia arrang-
ements

Loans and advances obtained 

   as per islamic mode

Long term financing 0        1,298,836 0        1,346,725 

Short term borrowings 0        1,364,564 0           837,017 

Bank balances - current and deposits 0           499,496 0 63,213

            

Profit earned from bank deposits 0               9,362 0 1,199

              

Revenue earned 0        4,190,726 0 3,837,826

       

Profit paid 0           221,794 0 203,170

          

47.2 GGGL

Sharia arrang-

ements

Non - Sharia 
arrangements

Sharia arrang-
ements

i) Loans and advances obtained 

   as per islamic mode

Long term financing 0           618,083 0           533,207 

Short term borrowings 0           534,000 0           120,992 

ii) Bank balances - current and deposits 0             49,211 0 166,488

          

iii) Profit earned from bank deposits 0               2,944 0 2,477

              

iv) Revenue earned 0        1,505,037 0 1,398,168

       

v) Profit paid 0             68,221 0 93,575

            

GGGL has banking relationship with Islamic windows of conventional banking system as well as Shariah

compliant banks only.

-------------------------- Rupees in thousand----------------------------

Following information has been disclosed as required under Paragraph 10 of Part I of the 4th Schedule to the

Companies Act, 2017 relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.

2022

2022

Carried under

Non - Sharia 

arrangements

2021

Carried under Carried under

Non - Sharia 

arrangements

-------------------------- Rupees in thousand----------------------------

GCIL has banking relationship with Islamic windows of conventional banking system as well as Shariah

compliant banks only.

Carried under

2021

Following information has been disclosed as required under Paragraph 10 of Part I of the 4th Schedule to the

Companies Act, 2017 relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.
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48. SEGMENT REPORTING

48.1 GGGL

Glass tubes and glass ware

This segment covers sales of all glass tubes and other glass wares. 

Chemicals

This segment covers revenue of ethylene ripener earned during the year. 

48.2 Segment results are as follows:

GGGL has following two strategic divisions which are its reportable segments. Following

summary describes the operations of each reportable segments:

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Net sales 1,390,798          114,239            1,505,037            1,205,682          192,487             1,398,169         

Cost of sales (996,841)            (88,227)            (1,085,068)          (813,801)            (170,214)           (984,015)           

Gross profit 393,957              26,012              419,969               391,881              22,273               414,154             

Administrative expenses (78,966)              (4,156)               (83,122)                (103,986)            (5,473)               (109,459)           

Selling and distribution expenses (20,038)              (1,055)               (21,093)                (22,560)              (2,645)               (25,205)             

(99,004)              (5,211)               (104,215)             (126,546)            (8,118)               (134,664)           

Segment profit carried forward 294,953             20,801              315,754               265,335             14,155               279,490            

Segment profit brought forward 294,953             20,801              315,754               265,335             14,155               279,490            

Unallocated expenses

Other operating expenses (22,864)                (20,683)             

Other income 24,664                 7,692                 

317,554               266,498            

Finance cost (80,830)                (110,444)           

Profit before taxation 236,724               156,054            

Taxation (38,784)                (22,934)             

Profit after taxation 197,940               133,120            

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

The segment assets and liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Property, plant and equipment 2,593,562          8,592                2,602,154            1,778,185          8,956                 1,787,141         

Trade debts 274,094             20,783              294,877               211,650             65,097               276,747            

Stock in trade 497,866             16,744              514,610               389,633             1,601                 391,234            

Stores, spares and loose tools 179,358             -                    179,358               148,491             -                     148,491            

Unallocated Assets -                      -                    495,814               -                      -                     541,293            

Total Assets 4,086,813            3,144,906         

4,692                  1,108                5,800                   4,908                  876                    5,784                 

Unallocated Liabilities -                      -                    1,759,248            -                      -                     868,640            

Total Liabilities 1,765,048            874,424            

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

2022 2021

Contract liabilities - Advances 

from customers (Unsecured)
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48.3 GCIL

a) Industrial Chemicals

b) Industrial and Medical Gases

48.4

This segment covers business with large-scale industrial consumers, typically in the oil,
chemical, food and beverage, metal, glass sectors and medical customers in healthcare
sectors. Gases and services are supplied as part of customer specific solutions and range
from supply by road tankers in liquefied form. Gases for cutting and welding, hospital,
laboratory applications and a variety of medical purposes are also distributed under
pressure in cylinders.

This segment covers business of trading of chemicals.

GCIL has following two strategic divisions which are its reportable segments. Following
summary describes the operations of each reportable segments:

Segment results are as follows:

Revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major product lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Glass tubes and

Glass ware
Chemicals Total

Geographical 

Local 1,377,905          114,239            1,492,144            1,124,486          192,487            1,316,973         

Foreign 12,892                -                    12,892                 81,195                -                     81,195               

1,505,036            1,398,168         

Timing of revenue - All revenue is recognized at Point in time

Contract balances 2022 2021

Trade debts 294,876            276,747            

Contract liabilities - Advance from customers 5,799                 5,783                 

Rupees in thousand

2022 2021

Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand

Industrial 

and Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Industrial 

and Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Net sales 3,634,674    556,052      4,190,726         3,281,774    556,052      3,837,826      

Cost of sales (1,937,847)   (506,207)     (2,444,054)        (1,674,504)   (506,207)     (2,180,711)     

Gross profit / (loss) 1,696,827    49,845        1,746,672         1,607,270    49,845        1,657,115      

Distribution cost (294,848)      (9,119)         (303,967)           (293,046)      (9,063)         (302,109)        

Administrative expenses (155,128)      (8,165)         (163,293)           (138,332)      (7,281)         (145,613)        

(449,976)      (17,284)       (467,260)           (431,378)      (16,344)       (447,722)        

Segment profit / (loss) 1,246,851    32,561        1,279,412         1,175,892    33,501        1,209,393      

Unallocated corporate expenses

Other expenses (100,632)           (89,507)          

Other income 211,830            55,092           

1,390,610         1,174,978      

Finance cost (229,626)           (208,265)        

Share of profit from Associate 2,844                0                    

Profit before taxation 1,163,828         966,713         

Taxation (351,486)           (275,597)        

Profit / (loss) after taxation 812,342            691,116         

------------------------------------ Year ended ------------------------------------

Year ended June 30, 2022 Year ended June 30, 2021

------------------------------------------------ Rupees in thousand -------------------------------------------
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48.5

48.6

48.7

49. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

50. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

50.1 GGGL

2022 2021

Neutral glass tubing clear and amber                 7,300                7,300 

Netural glass tubing clear and amber                 4,194                4,907 

All the non-current assets of GCIL at the reporting date were located within Pakistan.

Depreciation expense mainly relates to industrial and medical gases segment. 

The efficiency of 67% (2021: 67%) in neutral glass tubing is under utilised primarily due to

normal repair and maintenance, partly rebuild of furnace, introduction of new technology

and shifting of product line.

Matric Tons

Actual production

The production capacity and the actual packed production achieved during the year are as

follows:

Capacity of production

Investments out of provident fund trusts have been made in accordance with the provisions

of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.

GCIL's customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of

the net sales.

Transfers between business segments are recorded at cost. There were no inter segment
transfers during the year .

Industrial and 

Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Industrial and 

Medical 

Gases

Industrial 

Chemicals
Total

Segment assets        6,845,084         127,999             6,973,083        4,727,014           78,320         4,805,334 

Unallocated assets             2,652,742         1,184,827 

Total assets             9,625,825         5,990,161 

Segment liabilities        2,480,038             4,535             2,484,573        1,598,850             5,911         1,604,761 

Unallocated liabilities             1,687,004         1,472,914 

Total liabilities             4,171,577         3,077,675 

------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand -------------------------------------------------

The segment assets and liabilities at the reporting date for the year-end were as follows:

As at June 30, 2022 As at June 30, 2021
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50.2 GCIL

2022 2021

Industrial and medical gases

Production at normal capacity - gross 78,897,955
      

76,860,000
      

Production at normal capacity - net of normal losses 72,713,628
      

70,838,710
      

Actual production - net of normal losses 59,318,060
      

61,772,453
      

Efficiency achieved 82% 87%

51. Under-utilisation

2022 2021

52. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at the year-end 632 580

Average number of employees during the year 611 578

53. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

54. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

---------- Cubic Meter ----------

Under-utilisation of available capacity is due to unavoidable / abnormal shutdowns and
repair and maintenance of plant & machinery.

(Number)

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for

the purposes of comparison; however, except for restatement of earnings per share, no

significant re-classifications / re-statements have been made to these consolidated financial
statements .

The following normal production capacity has been worked-out on the basis of daily triple

shift basis:

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director Chief Financial Officer

Asim Mahmud
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These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on October 04, 2022 
by the board of directors of the Holding Company.
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